

FORT PITT CAPITAL TOTAL RETURN FUND (FPCGX)

A series of Advisors Series Trust

Supplement dated April 4, 2024 to the Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"), each dated February 28, 2024

We wish to inform you that at the recommendation of Fort Pitt Capital Group, LLC the investment adviser of the Fort Pitt Capital Total Return Fund (the "Acquired Fund"), the Board of Trustees of Advisors Series Trust (the "Trust") has voted to approve an Agreement and Plan of Reorganization whereby the Acquired Fund would reorganize out of the Trust and into a series of North Square Investments Trust ("NSIT") that was newly created specifically for such reorganization (the "Acquiring Fund") (the "Reorganization"). The Reorganization would be structured as a tax-free reorganization for federal tax purposes.

The Acquired Fund and its corresponding Acquiring Fund will have the same investment objective and principal investment strategies. The Acquired Fund and the Acquiring Fund's investment adviser and portfolio managers will also remain the same. However, the Reorganization would result in the Acquiring Fund being under the supervision of a different Board of Trustees and key service providers.

In the next few weeks, shareholders of record of the Acquired Fund will receive a proxy statement soliciting their vote with respect to the proposed Reorganization. If approved, the Reorganization is anticipated to take effect on June 28, 2024, or such other date as the parties may agree. Approval of the Reorganization, with respect to the Acquired Fund, requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of such Fund. When you receive your proxy statement, please review it and cast your vote as instructed in the materials so the Trust may avoid any future solicitations.

Please retain this Supplement with your Prospectus and SAI.



FORT PITT CAPITAL TOTAL RETURN FUND (FPCGX)

A series of Advisors Series Trust

c/o U.S. Bank Global Fund Services P.O. Box 701 Milwaukee, WI 53201-0701 1-866-688-8775

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION Dated February 28, 2024

This Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") relates to the Fort Pitt Capital Total Return Fund (the "Fund"), which is a series of Advisors Series Trust. This SAI is not a Prospectus and should be read only in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Fund dated February 28, 2024. The Prospectus, which contains the basic information you should know before investing in the Fund, may be obtained by writing or calling the Fund at the address and phone number shown above.

The Fund's audited financial statements and notes thereto for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023, are contained in the Fund's <u>annual report</u> and are incorporated by reference into this SAI. A copy of the annual report may be obtained without charge on the Fund's website or by calling or writing the Fund as shown above.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

THE TRUST	
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE FUND'S INVESTMENTS	• • • •
INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	
PORTFOLIO TURNOVER	
PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS INFORMATION	
MANAGEMENT	
CODE OF ETHICS	
PROXY VOTING POLICY	
CONTROL PERSONS, PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS, AND MANAGEMENT OWNERSHIP	
INVESTMENT ADVISOR AND ADVISORY AGREEMENT	
PORTFOLIO MANAGERS	
SERVICE AGREEMENTS	
DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT	
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND TURNOVER	
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT PURCHASES AND SALES	
DIVIDENDS	
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON DISTRIBUTIONS AND TAXES	
DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS	
ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING PROGRAM	
GENERAL INFORMATION	
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
APPENDIX	

THE TRUST

Advisors Series Trust (the "Trust") was organized as a Delaware statutory trust under the laws of the State of Delaware on October 3, 1996 and is registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") as an open-end management investment company. The Trust's Agreement and Declaration of Trust (the "Declaration of Trust") permits the Trust's Board of Trustees (the "Board" or the "Trustees") to issue an unlimited number of full and fractional shares of beneficial interest, par value \$0.01 per share, which may be issued in any number of series. The Trust consists of various series that represent separate investment portfolios. The Board may from time to time issue other series, the assets and liabilities of which will be separate and distinct from any other series. This SAI relates only to the Fund.

Registration with the SEC does not involve supervision of the management or policies of the Fund. The Fund's Prospectus and this SAI omit certain of the information contained in the Trust's Registration Statement filed with the SEC. Copies of such information may be obtained from the SEC upon payment of the prescribed fee.

History of the Fund. The Fund is the successor to the Fort Pitt Capital Total Return Fund, a series of Fort Pitt Capital Funds (the "Predecessor Fund"), a separate registered investment company. The Predecessor Fund was managed, and the Fund is managed, by Fort Pitt Capital Group, LLC (the "Advisor"). The Advisor was responsible for the day-to-day management of the Predecessor Fund, which had a substantially similar investment objective, investment strategies, policies and restrictions as those of the Fund. The Predecessor Fund's date of inception was December 31, 2001. The Predecessor Fund reorganized into the Fund on July 15, 2011. Substantially all of the assets of the Predecessor Fund were acquired by the Fund in connection with its commencement of operations on July 15, 2011 (the "Reorganization").

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE FUND'S INVESTMENTS

The Fund's investment goal is long-term capital appreciation and income. The Fund seeks to achieve its goal by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of common stocks of domestic (U.S.) companies and fixed income investments. The Fund's investment goal is not fundamental, and therefore may be changed in the future by action of the Board of Trustees (or "Board") of the Trust. Shareholders would not be asked to vote on any change in the investment goal, but would receive advance written notice of any such change.

The Fund's Prospectus outlines the principal investment strategies of the Fund. The following discussion of investment techniques and instruments supplements, and should be read in conjunction with, the investment information set forth in the Fund's Prospectus, and includes some information about strategies that are not considered to be principal investment strategies. The investment practices described below, except for the discussion of the Fund's fundamental investment restrictions, are not fundamental and may be changed by the Board of Trustees without the approval of the shareholders. In seeking to meet the investment goal of the Fund, the Advisor may cause the Fund to invest in securities whose characteristics are consistent with the Fund's investment goal. The securities in which the Fund may invest include those described below.

Market and Regulatory Risk

Events in the financial markets and economy may cause volatility and uncertainty and affect performance. Such adverse effect on performance could include a decline in the value and liquidity of securities held by the Fund, unusually high and unanticipated levels of redemptions, an increase in portfolio turnover, a

decrease in net asset value ("NAV"), and an increase in Fund expenses. It may also be unusually difficult to identify both investment risks and opportunities, in which case investment objectives may not be met. Market events may affect a single issuer, industry, sector, or the market as a whole. Traditionally liquid investments may experience periods of diminished liquidity. During a general downturn in the financial markets, multiple asset classes may decline in value and the Fund may lose value, regardless of the individual results of the securities and other instruments in which the Fund invests. It is impossible to predict whether or for how long such market events will continue, particularly if they are unprecedented, unforeseen or widespread events or conditions, pandemics, epidemics and other similar circumstances in one or more countries or regions. Therefore, it is important to understand that the value of your investment may fall, sometimes sharply and for extended periods, and you could lose money.

Governmental and regulatory actions, including tax law changes, may also impair portfolio management and have unexpected or adverse consequences on particular markets, strategies, or investments. Policy and legislative changes in the United States and in other countries are affecting many aspects of financial regulation, and may in some instances contribute to decreased liquidity and increased volatility in the financial markets. The impact of these changes on the markets, and the practical implications for market participants, may not be fully known for some time. In addition, economies and financial markets throughout the world are becoming increasingly interconnected. As a result, whether or not the Fund invests in securities of issuers located in or with significant exposure to countries experiencing economic and financial difficulties, the value and liquidity of the Fund's investments may be negatively affected.

Common and Preferred Stock

Equity securities, such as common stocks, represent shares of ownership of a corporation. Preferred stocks are equity securities that often pay dividends at a specific rate and have a preference over common stocks in dividend payments and liquidation of assets. Some preferred stocks may be convertible into common stock. Common stock is a principal investment of the Fund.

Convertible Securities

Traditional convertible securities include corporate bonds, notes and preferred stocks that may be converted into or exchanged for common stock, and other securities that also provide an opportunity for equity participation. These securities are generally convertible either at a stated price or a stated rate (that is, for a specific number of shares of common stock or other security). As with other fixed-income securities, the price of a convertible security to some extent varies inversely with interest rates. While providing a fixed-income stream (generally higher in yield than the income derivable from a common stock, but lower than that afforded by a non-convertible debt security), a convertible security also affords the investor an opportunity, through its conversion feature, to participate in the capital appreciation of the common stock into which it is convertible. As the market price of the underlying common stock declines, convertible securities tend to trade increasingly on a yield basis and so may not experience market value declines to the same extent as the underlying common stock. When the market price of the underlying common stock increases, the price of a convertible security tends to rise as a reflection of the value of the underlying common stock. To obtain such a higher yield, the Fund may be required to pay for a convertible security an amount in excess of the value of the underlying common stock. Common stock acquired by the Fund upon conversion of a convertible security will generally be held for so long as the Advisor anticipates such stock will provide the Fund with opportunities that are consistent with the Fund's investment goal and policies.

Debt Securities

Debt securities purchased by the Fund will consist of obligations that are rated investment grade or better, having at least adequate capacity to pay interest and repay principal. Non-convertible debt obligations will be rated BBB or higher by S&P Global Ratings ("S&P"), or Baa or higher by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's") or determined to be of comparable quality by the Advisor if the security is unrated. Convertible debt obligations will be rated A or higher by S&P, or A or higher by Moody's, or determined to be of comparable quality by the Advisor if the security is unrated. Bonds in the lowest investment grade category (BBB by S&P or Baa by Moody's) have speculative characteristics. Changes in the economy or other circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the bonds to make principal and interest payments than would occur with bonds rated in higher categories. Fixed income securities (primarily U.S. obligations) are principal investments of the Fund. See the Appendix to this SAI.

Illiquid and Restricted Securities

Pursuant to Rule 22e-4 under the 1940 Act, the Fund may not acquire any "illiquid investment" if, immediately after the acquisition, the Fund would have invested more than 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments that are assets. An "illiquid investment" is any investment that the Fund reasonably expects cannot be sold or disposed of in current market conditions in seven calendar days or less without the sale or disposition significantly changing the market value of the investment. The Fund has implemented a liquidity risk management program and related procedures to identify illiquid investments pursuant to Rule 22e-4. The 15% limits are applied as of the date the Fund purchases an illiquid investment. It is possible that the Fund's holding of illiquid investment could exceed the 15% limit, for example as a result of market developments or redemptions.

The Fund may purchase certain restricted securities that can be resold to institutional investors and which may be determined not to be illiquid investments pursuant to the Fund's liquidity risk management program. In many cases, those securities are traded in the institutional market pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities act of 1933, as amended (the "1933 Act") and are called Rule 144A securities.

Investments in illiquid investments involve more risks than investments in similar securities that are readily marketable. Illiquid investments may trade at a discount from comparable, more liquid investments. Investment of the Fund's assets in illiquid investments may restrict the ability of the Fund to dispose of its investments in a timely fashion and for a fair price as well as its ability to take advantage of market opportunities. The risks associated with illiquidity will be particularly acute where the Fund's operations require cash, such as when the Fund has net redemptions, and could result in the Fund borrowing to meet short-term cash requirements or incurring losses on the sale of illiquid investments.

Restricted securities sold in private placement transactions between issuers and their purchasers are neither listed on an exchange nor traded in other established markets and may be illiquid. In many cases, the privately placed securities may not be freely transferable under the laws of the applicable jurisdiction or due to contractual restrictions on resale. To the extent privately placed securities may be resold in privately negotiated transactions, the prices realized from the sales could be less than those originally paid by the Fund or less than the fair value of the securities. A restricted security may be determined to be liquid under the Fund's liquidity risk management program established pursuant to Rule 22e-4 depending on market, trading, or investment-specific considerations related to the restricted security. In addition, issuers whose securities are not publicly traded may not be subject to the disclosure and other investor protection requirements that may be applicable if their securities were publicly traded. If any privately

placed securities held by the Fund are required to be registered under the securities laws of one or more jurisdictions before being resold, the Fund may be required to bear the expenses of registration. Private placement investments may involve investments in smaller, less seasoned issuers, which may involve greater risks than investments in more established companies. These issuers may have limited product lines, markets or financial resources, or they may be dependent on a limited management group. In making investments in private placement securities, the Fund may obtain access to material non-public information about an issuer of private placement securities, which may restrict the Fund's ability to conduct transactions in those securities.

When Issued, Delayed Delivery Securities and Forward Commitments

The Fund may enter into forward commitments for the purchase or sale of securities, including on a "when issued" or "delayed delivery" basis in excess of customary settlement periods for the type of security involved. In some cases, a forward commitment may be conditioned upon the occurrence of a subsequent event, such as approval and consummation of a merger, corporate reorganization or debt restructuring, *i.e.*, a "when, as and if issued" security. When such transactions are negotiated, the price is fixed at the time of the commitment, with payment and delivery taking place in the future, generally a month or more after the date of the commitment. While the Fund will only enter into a forward commitment with the intention of actually acquiring the security, the Fund may sell the security before the settlement date if it is deemed advisable.

Securities purchased under a forward commitment are subject to market fluctuation, and no interest (or dividends) accrues to the Fund prior to the settlement date.

Rule 18f-4 under the 1940 Act permits the Fund to invest in securities on a when-issued or forward-settling basis, or with a non-standard settlement cycle, notwithstanding the limitation on the issuance of senior securities in Section 18 of the 1940 Act, provided that the Fund intends to physically settle the transaction and the transaction will settle within 35 days of its trade date (the "Delayed-Settlement Securities Provision"). A when-issued, forward-settling, or non-standard settlement cycle security that does not satisfy the Delayed-Settlement Securities Provision is treated as a derivatives transaction under Rule 18f-4.

U.S. Government Securities

U.S. government securities are obligations of, or guaranteed by, the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities. The U.S. government does not guarantee the NAV of the Fund's shares. Some U.S. government securities, such as U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds, and securities guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association ("GNMA"), are supported by the full faith and credit of the United States; others, such as those of the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to borrow from the U.S. Treasury; others, such as those of the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA"), are supported by the discretionary authority of the U.S. government to purchase the agency's obligations; and still others, such as those of the Student Loan Marketing Association, are supported only by the credit of the instrumentality. The Fund may also invest in other securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, its agencies and instrumentalities; such as obligations of Federal Home Loan Banks, Federal Farm Credit Banks, Federal Land Banks, the Federal Housing Administration, Farmers Home Administration, Export-Import Bank of the United States, Small Business Administration, GNMA, FNMA, General Services Administration, Central Bank for Cooperatives, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Maritime Administration,

and Resolution Trust Corp. No assurance can be given that the U.S. government will provide financial support to U.S. government-sponsored agencies or instrumentalities if it is not obligated to do so by law.

U.S. government securities include securities that have no coupons, or have been stripped of their unmatured interest coupons, individual interest coupons from such securities that trade separately, and evidences of receipt of such securities. Such securities may pay no cash income, and are purchased at a deep discount from their value at maturity. The discount varies depending on the time remaining until maturity, as well as market interest rates, liquidity of the security, and the issuer's perceived credit quality. The discount, in the absence of financial difficulties of the issuer, typically decreases as the final maturity date approaches. If the issuer defaults, the Fund may not receive any return on its investment. Because zero-coupon securities bear no interest and compound semiannually at the rate fixed at the time of issuance, their value generally is more volatile than the value of other fixed-income securities. Since zero-coupon bondholders do not receive interest payments, when interest rates rise, zero-coupon securities fall more dramatically in value than bonds paying interest on a current basis. When interest rates fall, zero-coupon securities rise more rapidly in value because the bonds reflect a fixed rate of return. An investment in zero-coupon and delayed interest securities may cause the Fund to recognize income and make distributions to shareholders before it receives any cash payments on its investment. To generate cash to satisfy distribution requirements, the Fund may have to sell portfolio securities that it otherwise would have continued to hold or to use cash flows from other sources such as the sale of Fund shares. Because interest on zero-coupon securities is not distributed on a current basis but is, in effect, compounded, zero-coupon securities tend to be subject to greater market risk than interest-payment securities, such as CATs and TIGRs, which are not issued by the U.S. Treasury, and are therefore not U.S. government securities, although the underlying bond represented by such receipt is a debt obligation of the U.S. Treasury. Other zero coupon Treasury securities (STRIPs and CUBEs) are direct obligations of the U.S. government.

Bank Obligations

Bank obligations include bankers' acceptances, negotiable certificates of deposit and non-negotiable time deposits, including U.S. dollar-denominated instruments issued or supported by the credit of U.S. or foreign banks or savings institutions. Although the Fund may invest in money market obligations of foreign banks or foreign branches of U.S. banks only where the Advisor determines the instrument to present minimal credit risks, such investments may nevertheless entail risks that are different from those of investments in domestic obligations of U.S. banks due to differences in political, regulatory and economic systems and conditions. All investments in bank obligations are limited to the obligations of financial institutions having more than \$1 billion in total assets at the time of purchase, and investments by the Fund in the obligations of foreign banks and foreign branches of U.S. banks will not exceed 10% of the Fund's total assets at the time of purchase. The Fund may also make interest-bearing savings deposits in commercial and savings banks in amounts not in excess of 10% of its net assets.

Foreign Securities

The Fund may invest in securities of foreign companies. However, the Fund will not invest more than 10% of the value of its net assets, at the time of purchase, in foreign securities (other than securities of Canadian issuers registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or ADRs, on which there are no such limits). Although the Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in foreign securities, the Advisor typically invests only a small portion of the Fund's portfolio in such securities, if at all.

There has been in the past, and there may be again in the future, an interest equalization tax levied by the United States in connection with the purchase of foreign securities such as those purchased by the Fund. Payment of such interest equalization tax, if imposed, would reduce the Fund's rate of return on its investment. Dividends paid by foreign issuers may be subject to withholding and other foreign taxes which may decrease the net return on such investments as compared to dividends paid to the Fund by U.S. corporations.

Investors should recognize that investing in foreign corporations involves certain considerations, including those set forth below, which are not typically associated with investing in U.S. corporations. Foreign corporations are not generally subject to uniform accounting, auditing and financial standards and requirements comparable to those applicable to U.S. corporations. There may also be less supervision and regulation of foreign stock exchanges, brokers, and listed corporations than exist in the United States. The Fund may be affected either unfavorably or favorably by fluctuations in the relative rates of exchange between the currencies of different nations and control regulations. Furthermore, there may be the possibility of expropriation or confiscatory taxation, political, economic or social instability, or diplomatic developments that could affect assets of the Fund held in foreign countries.

Brexit. The United Kingdom formally left the European Union ("EU") on January 31, 2020 (a measure commonly referred to as "Brexit"). Following the withdrawal, in December 2020, the United Kingdom and the EU entered into a new trading relationship. The agreement allows for continued trading free of tariffs, but institutes other new requirements for trading between the United Kingdom and the EU. Even with a new trading relationship having been established, Brexit could continue to affect European or world wide political, regulatory, economic, or market conditions. There is the possibility that there will continue to be considerable uncertainty about the potential impact of these developments on United Kingdom, European and global economies and markets. There is also the possibility of withdrawal movements within other EU countries and the possibility of additional political, economic and market uncertainty and instability. Brexit and any similar developments may have negative effects on economies and markets, such as increased volatility and illiquidity and potentially lower economic growth in the United Kingdom, EU and globally, which may adversely affect the value of the Fund's investments. Whether or not the Fund invests in securities of issuers located in Europe or with significant exposure to European issuers or countries, these events could result in losses to the Fund, as there may be negative effects on the value and liquidity of the Fund's investments and/or the Fund's ability to enter into certain transactions.

American Depositary Receipts

The Fund may make foreign investments through the purchase and sale of sponsored or unsponsored American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs") without limitation. ADRs evidence ownership of, and represent the right to receive, securities of foreign issuers deposited in a domestic bank or trust company or a foreign correspondent bank. Prices of ADRs are quoted in U.S. dollars, and ADRs are traded in the U.S. on exchanges or over-the-counter. While ADRs do not eliminate all the risks associated with foreign investments, by investing in ADRs rather than directly in the stock of foreign issuers, the Fund will avoid currency and certain foreign market trading risks during the settlement period for either purchases or sales. In general, there is a large, liquid market in the U.S. for ADRs quoted on a national securities exchange. The information available for ADRs is subject to the accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards of the U.S. market or exchange on which they are traded, which standards are generally more uniform and more exacting than those to which many foreign issuers may be subject.

In sponsored programs, an issuer has made arrangements to have its securities traded in the form of depositary receipts. In unsponsored programs, the issuer may not be directly involved in the creation of the program. Although regulatory requirements with respect to sponsored and unsponsored programs are generally similar, in some cases it may be easier to obtain financial information about an issuer that has participated in the creation of a sponsored program. There may be an increased possibility of untimely responses to certain corporate actions of the issuer, such as stock splits and rights offerings, in an unsponsored program. Accordingly, there may be less information available regarding issuers of securities underlying unsponsored programs and there may not be a correlation between this information and the market value of the depositary receipts. If the Fund's investment depends on obligations being met by the arranger as well as the issuer of an unsponsored program, the Fund will be exposed to additional credit risk.

Other Investment Companies

The Fund may invest in shares of other investment companies or mutual funds, including exchange-traded funds ("ETFs"). For example, the Fund may invest in money market mutual funds in connection with its management of daily cash positions and for temporary defensive purposes. The Fund currently intends to limit its investments in securities issued by other investment companies (except for money market funds) so that not more than 3% of the outstanding voting shares of any one investment company will be owned by the Fund, or its affiliated persons, as a whole. The Fund may invest unlimited amounts in money market funds for management of its daily cash position, subject to certain conditions. In addition to the advisory and operational fees the Fund bears directly in connection with its own operation, the Fund would also bear its pro rata portions of each other investment company's advisory and operational expenses.

Section 12(d)(1)(A) of the 1940 Act generally prohibits a fund from purchasing (1) more than 3% of the total outstanding voting stock of another fund; (2) securities of another fund having an aggregate value in excess of 5% of the value of the acquiring fund; and (3) securities of the other fund and all other funds having an aggregate value in excess of 10% of the value of the total assets of the acquiring fund. There are some exceptions, however, to these limitations pursuant to various rules promulgated by the SEC.

The Fund may rely on Section 12(d)(1)(F) and Rule 12d1-3 of the 1940 Act, which provide an exemption from Section 12(d)(1) that allows the Fund to invest all of its assets in other registered funds, including ETFs, if, among other conditions: (a) the Fund, together with its affiliates, acquires no more than 3% percent of the outstanding voting stock of any acquired fund, and (b) the sales load charged on the Fund's shares is no greater than the limits set forth in Rule 2341 of the Conduct Rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA") applicable to a fund of funds (e.g, 8.5%). In accordance with Rule 12d1-1 under the 1940 Act, the provisions of Section 12(d)(1) shall not apply to shares of money market funds purchased by the Fund, whether or not for temporary defensive purposes, provided that the Fund does not pay a sales charge, distribution fee or service fee as defined in Rule 2341 of the Conduct Rules of FINRA on acquired money market fund shares (or the Adviser must waive its advisory fees in amount necessary to offset any sales charge, distribution fee or service fee).

Rule 12d1-4 permits additional types of fund of fund arrangements without an exemptive order. The rule imposes certain conditions, including limits on control and voting of acquired funds' shares, evaluations and findings by investment advisers, fund investment agreements, and limits on most three-tier fund structures.

Exchange-Traded Funds – ETFs are open-end investment companies whose shares are listed on a national securities exchange. An ETF is similar to a traditional index mutual fund, but trades at different prices during the day on a security exchange like a stock. Similar to investments in other investment companies discussed above, the Fund's investments in ETFs will involve duplication of management fees and other expenses since the Fund will be investing in another investment company. In addition, the Fund's investment in ETFs is also subject to its limitations on investments in investment companies discussed above. To the extent the Fund invests in ETFs which focus on a particular market segment or industry, the Fund will also be subject to the risks associated with investing in those sectors or industries. The shares of the ETFs in which the Fund will invest will be listed on a national securities exchange and the Fund will purchase or sell these shares on the secondary market at its current market price, which may be more or less than its NAV per share.

As a purchaser of ETF shares on the secondary market, the Fund will be subject to the market risk associated with owning any security whose value is based on market price. ETF shares historically have tended to trade at or near their NAV per share, but there is no guarantee that they will continue to do so. ETFs that seek to replicate a particular benchmark index are subject to "tracking risk" which is the risk that an ETF will not be able to replicate exactly the performance of the index it tracks. Unlike traditional mutual funds, shares of an ETF may also be purchased and redeemed directly from the ETFs only in large blocks and only through participating organizations that have entered into contractual agreements with the ETF. The Fund does not expect to enter into such agreements and therefore will not be able to purchase and redeem its ETF shares directly from the ETF.

Loans of Portfolio Securities

The Fund may lend its investment securities to approved borrowers who need to borrow securities in order to complete certain transactions, such as covering short sales, avoiding failures to deliver securities or completing arbitrage operations. By lending its investment securities, the Fund attempts to increase its income through the receipt of interest on the loan. Any gain or loss in the market price of the securities loaned that might occur during the term of the loan would be for the account of the Fund. The Fund may lend its investment securities to qualified brokers, dealers, domestic and foreign banks or other financial institutions, so long as the terms, the structure and the aggregate amount of such loans are not inconsistent with the 1940 Act or the rules and regulations or interpretations of the SEC thereunder, which currently require that: (a) the borrower pledge and maintain with the Fund collateral consisting of cash, an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a bank or securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government having a value at all times not less than 100% of the value of the securities loaned; (b) the borrower add to such collateral whenever the price of the securities loaned rises (i.e., the borrower "marks to the market" on a daily basis); (c) the loan be made subject to termination by the Fund at any time; and (d) the Fund receives reasonable interest on the loan (which may include the Fund investing any cash collateral in interest bearing short-term investments). All relevant facts and circumstances, including the creditworthiness of the broker, dealer or institution, will be considered in making decisions with respect to the lending of securities, and will be subject to review by the Board of Trustees. The Fund will not lend portfolio securities with a value in excess of 33-1/3% of the value of its total assets.

At the present time, the staff of the SEC does not object if an investment company pays reasonable negotiated fees in connection with loaned securities so long as such fees are set forth in a written contract and approved by the investment company's Board of Trustees. In addition, voting rights may pass with the loaned securities, but if a material event occurs affecting an investment on a loan, the loan must be called and the securities voted.

Borrowing

Currently, the 1940 Act permits the Fund to borrow money in amounts of up to one-third of the Fund's total assets from banks for any purpose, and to borrow up to 5% of the Fund's total assets from banks or other lenders for temporary purposes. To limit the risks attendant to borrowing, the 1940 Act requires the Fund to maintain at all times an "asset coverage" of at least 300% of the amount of its borrowings. Asset coverage means the ratio that the value of the Fund's total assets, minus liabilities other than borrowings, bears to the aggregate amount of all borrowings. Borrowing money to increase the Fund's investment portfolio is known as "leveraging." Borrowing, especially when used for leverage, may cause the value of the Fund's shares to be more volatile than if the Fund did not borrow. This is because borrowing tends to magnify the effect of any increase or decrease in the value of the Fund's portfolio holdings. Borrowed money thus creates an opportunity for greater gains, but also greater losses. To repay borrowings, the Fund may have to sell securities at a time and at a price that is unfavorable to the Fund. There also are costs associated with borrowing money, and these costs would offset and could eliminate the Fund's net investment income in any given period.

The use of borrowing by the Fund involves special risk considerations that may not be associated with other funds having similar objectives and policies.

Since substantially all of the Fund's assets fluctuate in value, while the interest obligation resulting from a borrowing will be fixed by the terms of the Fund's agreement with its lender, the NAV per share of the Fund will tend to increase more when its portfolio securities increase in value and to decrease more when its portfolio assets decrease in value than would otherwise be the case if the Fund did not borrow. In addition, interest costs on borrowings may fluctuate with changing market rates of interest and may partially offset or exceed the return earned on borrowed funds. Under adverse market conditions, the Fund might have to sell portfolio securities to meet interest or principal payments at a time when fundamental investment considerations would not favor such sales. The Fund will reduce its borrowing amount within three days, if its asset coverage falls below the amount required by the 1940 Act.

Derivatives

The Fund is prohibited from investing in derivatives, excluding certain currency and interest rate hedging transactions. This restriction is not fundamental and may be changed by the Fund without a shareholder vote. If the Fund does determine to invest in derivatives in the future, it will comply with Rule 18f-4 under the 1940 Act.

Temporary Investments

Under normal market conditions, the Fund may have money received from the purchase of Fund shares, or money received on the sale of its portfolio securities for which suitable investments consistent with the Fund's investment goals are not immediately available. Under these circumstances, the Fund may have such monies invested in cash or cash equivalents in order to earn income on this portion of its assets. Cash equivalents include investments such as U.S. government obligations, repurchase agreements, bank obligations, commercial paper and corporate bonds with remaining maturities of thirteen months or less. The Fund also may have a portion of its assets invested in cash equivalents in order to meet anticipated redemption requests or if other suitable securities are unavailable. In addition, the Fund may reduce its holdings in equity and other securities and may invest in cash and cash equivalents for temporary defensive purposes, during periods in which the Advisor believes changes in economic, financial, political or other conditions make it advisable.

Investments by the Fund in commercial paper will consist of issues rated at the time of investment as A-1 and/or P-1 by S&P, Moody's or similar rating by another nationally recognized rating agency. In addition, the Fund may acquire unrated commercial paper and corporate bonds that are determined by the Advisor at the time of purchase to be of comparable quality to rated instruments that may be acquired by the Fund as previously described.

Other Investments

The Board of Trustees may, in the future, authorize the Fund to invest in securities other than those listed in this SAI and in the Prospectus, provided such investments would be consistent with the Fund's investment goal and that it would not violate any fundamental investment policies or restrictions.

Special Risks Related to Cyber Security

The Fund and its service providers are susceptible to cyber security risks that include, among other things, theft, unauthorized monitoring, release, misuse, loss, destruction or corruption of confidential and highly restricted data; denial of service attacks; unauthorized access to relevant systems, compromises to networks or devices that the Fund and its service providers use to service the Fund's operations; or operational disruption or failures in the physical infrastructure or operating systems that support the Fund and its service providers. Cyber attacks against or security breakdowns of the Fund or its service providers may adversely impact the Fund and its shareholders, potentially resulting in, among other things, financial losses; the inability of Fund shareholders to transact business and the Fund to process transactions; inability to calculate the Fund's NAV; violations of applicable privacy and other laws; regulatory fines, penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs; and/or additional compliance costs. The Fund may incur additional costs for cyber security risk management and remediation purposes. In addition, cyber security risks may also impact issuers of securities in which the Fund invests, which may cause the Fund's investment in such issuers to lose value. There can be no assurance that the Fund or its service providers will not suffer losses relating to cyber attacks or other information security breaches in the future.

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

Fundamental Investment Policies and Restrictions:

The Fund has adopted the following fundamental investment restrictions which cannot be changed without the approval of a "majority of the outstanding voting securities" of the Fund. Under the 1940 Act, a "majority of the outstanding voting securities" of a fund means the vote of: (i) more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities of the fund; or (ii) 67% or more of the voting securities of the fund present at a meeting, if the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities are present or represented by proxy, whichever is less.

- 1. **Concentration:** The Fund may not concentrate (invest 25% or more of its total assets) in securities of issuers in a particular industry (other than securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agencies or instrumentalities). With respect to the Fund's fundamental investment policies and restrictions adopted by the Trust, "concentration" involves the Fund investing 25% or more of its total assets in securities of issuers in a particular industry.
- 2. **Borrowing:** The Fund may not borrow money, except as the 1940 Act, any rule or order thereunder, or SEC staff interpretation thereof, may permit. The 1940 Act allows a Fund to borrow from banks if they maintain 300% asset coverage for all such borrowings. The Fund can also borrow for temporary

- or emergency purposes in an amount not exceeding 5% of the value of the total assets of the Fund at the time the loan is made. This loan may but need not be from a bank and the aggregate of all loans may not exceed 33-1/3% of the Fund's assets.
- 3. **Senior Securities:** The Fund will not issue securities senior to the Fund's presently authorized shares of beneficial interest, except as permitted by the 1940 Act and any rule or order thereunder, or SEC staff interpretation thereof.
- 4. **Underwriting:** The Fund may not underwrite the securities of other issuers, except that the Fund may engage in transactions involving the acquisition, disposition or resale of its portfolio securities, under circumstances where it may be considered to be an underwriter under the 1933 Act.
- 5. **Real Estate:** The Fund may not purchase or sell real estate, unless acquired as a result of ownership of securities or other instruments and provided that this restriction does not prevent the Fund from investing in issuers which invest, deal or otherwise engage in transactions in real estate or interests therein (including real estate investment trusts), or investing in securities that are secured by real estate or interests therein.
- 6. **Commodities:** The Fund may not purchase or sell physical commodities, unless acquired as a result of ownership of securities or other instruments and provided that this restriction does not prevent the Fund from engaging in transactions involving financial instruments that are secured by physical commodities.
- 7. **Lending:** The Fund may not make loans if, as a result, the amount of the Fund's assets loaned would exceed the amount permitted under the 1940 Act or any applicable rule or regulation thereof, or any exemption therefrom, except that the Fund may (i) purchase or hold debt instruments, loan participations and/or engage in direct corporate loans in accordance with its investment goal and policies; (ii) enter into repurchase agreements; and (iii) lend its portfolio securities to broker/dealers or institutional investors. The Fund may also make loans to other investment companies to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act or any exemptions therefrom which may be granted by the SEC.
- 8. **Diversification:** The Fund may not purchase the securities of any one issuer (other than the U.S. government or any of its agencies or instrumentalities or securities of other investment companies) if immediately after such investment (a) more than 5% of the value of the Fund's total assets would be invested in such issuer; or (b) more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer would be owned by the Fund, except that up to 25% of the value of the Fund's total assets may be invested without regard to such 5% and 10% limitations.
- 9. **Other Investment Companies:** The Fund will not invest in the securities of other investment companies, except as permitted under the 1940 Act, as amended.

PORTFOLIO TURNOVER

Although the Fund generally will not invest for short-term trading purposes, portfolio securities may be sold without regard to the length of time they have been held when, in the opinion of the Advisor, investment considerations warrant such action. Portfolio turnover rate is calculated by dividing (1) the lesser of purchases or sales of portfolio securities for the fiscal year by (2) the monthly average of the value of portfolio securities owned during the fiscal year. A 100% turnover rate would occur if all the securities in the Fund's portfolio, with the exception of securities whose maturities at the time of acquisition were one year or less, were sold and either repurchased or replaced within one year. A high rate of portfolio turnover (100% or more) generally leads to higher transaction costs and may result in a greater number of taxable transactions, generally resulting in larger taxable distributions to shareholders.

The following table provides the Fund's portfolio turnover rate for the past two fiscal years ended October 31.

	2023	2022
Portfolio Turnover Rate	19%	14%

PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS INFORMATION

The Advisor and the Fund are subject to portfolio holdings disclosure policies. These policies govern the timing and circumstances of disclosure to shareholders and third parties about the portfolio investments which the Fund holds. These portfolio holdings disclosure policies have been approved by the Trust's Board of Trustees.

Disclosure of the Fund's complete holdings is required to be made quarterly within sixty (60) days of the end of each fiscal quarter in the annual report and semi-annual report to Fund shareholders and in the quarterly holdings report on Part F of Form N-PORT. These reports are available, free of charge, on the EDGAR database on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

Pursuant to the Fund's portfolio holdings disclosure policies, information about the Fund's portfolio holdings is not distributed to any person unless:

- The disclosure is required pursuant to a regulatory request, court order or is legally required in the context of other legal proceedings;
- The disclosure is made to a mutual fund rating and/or ranking organization, or person performing similar functions, who is subject to a duty of confidentiality, including a duty not to trade on any nonpublic information;
- The disclosure is made pursuant to U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC's, doing business as U.S. Bank Global Fund Services ("Fund Services"), disclosure policies and procedures, which currently provide for the delivery of information regarding Fund portfolio holdings to rating and/or ranking organizations including, without limitation, Lipper, Morningstar, Inc., S&P, and Bloomberg, L.P. which delivery currently occurs between the fifth and the tenth business day of the month following the end of a calendar quarter;
- The disclosure is made to internal parties involved in the investment process, administration, operation or custody of the Fund, including, but not limited to Fund Services and the Trust's Board of Trustees, attorneys or accountants;
- The disclosure is made: (a) in connection with a quarterly, semi-annual or annual report that is available to the public; or (b) relates to information that is otherwise available to the public; or
- The disclosure is made with the prior written approval of either the Trust's President or its Chief Compliance Officer.

Certain of the persons listed above receive information about the Fund's portfolio holdings on an ongoing basis. These persons include:

- A mutual fund rating and/or ranking organization, or person performing similar functions, who is subject to a duty of confidentiality, including a duty not to trade on any non-public information;
- Rating and/or ranking organizations, specifically: Lipper; Morningstar, Inc.; S&P; Bloomberg, L.P.; Vickers-Stock Research Corporation; Wilshire & Associates, Inc.; Thomson Reuters; CapitalBridge;

- and Interactive Data Corporation, all of which currently receive such information between the fifth and tenth business day of the month following the end of a calendar quarter; or
- Internal parties involved in the investment process, administration, operation or custody of the Fund, specifically: Fund Services; the Trust's Board of Trustees; and the Trust's attorneys, counsel for the independent trustees, and independent registered public accounting firm (currently, Sullivan & Worcester LLP and Tait, Weller & Baker LLP, respectively), all of which typically receive such information after it is generated.

Any disclosures to additional parties not described above are made with the prior written approval of either the Trust's President or its Chief Compliance Officer, pursuant to the Fund's Policy and Procedures Regarding Disclosure of Portfolio Holdings.

No compensation or other consideration (as contemplated by SEC rules and regulations) is received by the Fund, its investment advisor, or any other party in connection with the ongoing arrangements described above.

MANAGEMENT

The overall management of the Trust's business and affairs is vested with its Board. The Board approves all significant agreements between the Trust and persons or companies furnishing services to it, including the agreements with the Advisor, administrator, custodian and transfer agent, each as defined herein. The day-to-day operations of the Trust are delegated to its officers, subject to the Fund's investment objective, strategies and policies and to the general supervision of the Board. The Trustees and officers of the Trust, their ages, and positions with the Trust, terms of office with the Trust and length of time served, their business addresses and principal occupations during the past five years and other directorships held are set forth in the table below. Unless noted otherwise, each person has held the position listed for a minimum of five years.

$Independent\ Trustees^{(1)}$

		Term of	D	Number of Portfolios	
Name, Address and Age	Position Held with the Trust	Office and Length of Time Served*	Principal Occupation During Past Five Years	in Fund Complex Overseen by Trustee ⁽²⁾	Other Directorships Held During Past Five Years ⁽³⁾
David G. Mertens (age 63) 615 E. Michigan Street Milwaukee, WI 53202	Chairman of the Board	Indefinite term; since October 2023.	Partner and Head of Business Development QSV Equity Investors, LLC (formerly	1	Trustee, Advisors Series Trust (for series not affiliated with the Fund).
	Trustee	Indefinite term; since March 2017.	known as Ballast Equity Management, LLC) (a privately-held investment advisory firm) (February 2019 to present); Managing Director and Vice President, Jensen Investment Management, Inc. (a privately-held investment advisory firm) (2002 to 2017).		
Joe D. Redwine (age 76) 615 E. Michigan Street Milwaukee, WI 53202	Trustee	Indefinite term; since September 2008.	Retired; formerly Manager, President, CEO, U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, and its predecessors, (May 1991 to July 2017).	1	Trustee, Advisors Series Trust (for series not affiliated with the Fund).
Michele Rackey (age 65) 615 E. Michigan Street Milwaukee, WI 53202	Trustee	Indefinite term; since January 2023.	Chief Executive Officer, Government Employees Benefit Association (GEBA) (benefits and wealth management organization) (2004 to 2020); Board Member, Association Business Services Inc. (ABSI) (for- profit subsidiary of the American Society of Association Executives) (2019 to 2020).	1	Trustee, Advisors Series Trust (for series not affiliated with the Fund).

Officers

Name, Address and Age	Position Held with the Trust	Term of Office and Length of Time Served	Principal Occupation During Past Five Years
Jeffrey T. Rauman (age 55) 615 E. Michigan Street Milwaukee, WI 53202	President, Chief Executive Officer and Principal Executive Officer	Indefinite term; since December 2018.	Senior Vice President, Compliance and Administration, U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (February 1996 to present).
Kevin J. Hayden (age 52) 615 E. Michigan Street Milwaukee, WI 53202	Vice President, Treasurer and Principal Financial Officer	Indefinite term; since January 2023.	Vice President, Compliance and Administration, U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (June 2005 to present).
Cheryl L. King (age 62) 615 E. Michigan Street Milwaukee, WI 53202	Assistant Treasurer	Indefinite term; since January 2023.	Vice President, Compliance and Administration, U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (October 1998 to present).
Richard R. Conner (age 41) 615 E. Michigan Street Milwaukee, WI 53202	Assistant Treasurer	Indefinite term; since December 2018.	Assistant Vice President, Compliance and Administration, U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (July 2010 to present).
Joseph R. Kolinsky (age 53) 2020 E. Financial Way, Suite 100 Glendora, CA 91741	Vice President, Chief Compliance Officer and AML Officer	Indefinite term; since July 2023.	Vice President, U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (May 2023 to present); Chief Compliance Officer, Chandler Asset Management, Inc. (2020 to 2022); Director, Corporate Compliance, Pacific Life Insurance Company (2018 to 2019).
Elaine E. Richards (age 55) 2020 E. Financial Way, Suite 100 Glendora, CA 91741	Vice President and Secretary	Indefinite term; since September 2019.	Senior Vice President, U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (July 2007 to present).
Lillian A. Kabakali (age 43) 2020 E. Financial Way, Suite 100 Glendora, CA 91741	Assistant Secretary	Indefinite term; since July 2023.	Vice President, U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (April 2023 to present); Vice President, Compliance, Guggenheim Partners Investment Management Holdings, LLC (April 2019 to April 2023); Senior Associate, Compliance, Guggenheim Partners Investment Management Holdings, LLC (January 2018 to April 2019).

^{*} The Trustees have designated a mandatory retirement age of 75, such that each Trustee, serving as such on the date he or she reaches the age of 75, shall submit his or her resignation not later than the last day of the calendar year in which his or her 75th birthday occurs ("Retiring Trustee"). Upon request, the Board may, by vote of a majority of the Trustees eligible to vote on such matter, determine whether or not to extend such Retiring Trustee's term and on the length of a one-time extension of up to three additional years. At a meeting held December 7-8, 2022, by vote of the majority of the Trustees (not including Mr. Redwine), Mr. Redwine's term as Trustee was extended for three additional years to expire on December 31, 2025.

The Trustees of the Trust who are not "interested persons" of the Trust as defined under the 1940 Act ("Independent Trustees")

As of December 31, 2023, the Trust was comprised of 34 active portfolios managed by unaffiliated investment advisers. The term "Fund Complex" applies only to the Fund. The Fund does not hold itself out as related to any other series within the Trust for investment purposes, nor does it share the same investment adviser with any other series.

(3) "Other Directorships Held" includes only directorships of companies required to register or file reports with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (that is, "public companies") or other investment companies registered under the 1940 Act.

Additional Information Concerning Our Board of Trustees

The Role of the Board

The Board provides oversight of the management and operations of the Trust. Like all mutual funds, the day-to-day responsibility for the management and operations of the Trust is the responsibility of various service providers to the Trust, such as the Trust's investment advisers, distributor, administrator, custodian, and transfer agent, each of whom are discussed in greater detail in this SAI. The Board approves all significant agreements between the Trust and its service providers, including the agreements with the investment advisers, distributor, administrator, custodian and transfer agent. The Board has appointed various senior individuals of certain of these service providers as officers of the Trust, with responsibility to monitor and report to the Board on the Trust's day-to-day operations. In conducting this oversight, the Board receives regular reports from these officers and service providers regarding the Trust's operations. The Board has appointed a Chief Compliance Officer ("CCO") who administers the Trust's compliance program and regularly reports to the Board as to compliance matters. Some of these reports are provided as part of formal "Board Meetings" which are typically held quarterly, in person, and involve the Board's review of recent Trust operations. From time to time one or more members of the Board may also meet with Trust officers in less formal settings, between formal "Board Meetings," to discuss various topics. In all cases, however, the role of the Board and of any individual Trustee is one of oversight and not of management of the day-to-day affairs of the Trust and its oversight role does not make the Board a guarantor of the Trust's investments, operations or activities.

Board Leadership Structure

The Board has structured itself in a manner that it believes allows it to effectively perform its oversight function. It has established three standing committees, an Audit Committee, a Governance and Nominating Committee and a Qualified Legal Compliance Committee (the "QLCC"), which are discussed in greater detail under "Board Committees," below. Currently, all of the members of the Board are Independent Trustees, which are Trustees that are not affiliated with the Adviser or its affiliates or any other investment adviser in the Trust or with its principal underwriter. The Independent Trustees have engaged their own independent counsel to advise them on matters relating to their responsibilities in connection with the Trust.

The President, Chief Executive Officer and Principal Executive Officer of the Trust is not a Trustee, but rather is a senior employee of the Administrator who routinely interacts with the unaffiliated investment advisers of the Trust and comprehensively manages the operational aspects of the Funds in the Trust. The Trust has appointed David Mertens, an Independent Trustee, as Chairman of the Board, and he acts as a liaison with the Trust's service providers, officers, legal counsel, and other Trustees between meetings, helps to set Board meeting agendas, and serves as Chairman during executive sessions of the Independent Trustees.

The Board reviews its structure annually. The Trust has determined that it is appropriate to separate the Principal Executive Officer and Board Chairman positions because the day-to day responsibilities of the Principal Executive Officer are not consistent with the oversight role of the Trustees and because of the potential conflict of interest that may arise from the Administrator's duties with the Trust. Given the

specific characteristics and circumstances of the Trust as described above, the Trust has determined that the Board's leadership structure is appropriate.

Board Oversight of Risk Management

As part of its oversight function, the Board receives and reviews various risk management reports and assessments and discusses these matters with appropriate management and other personnel. Because risk management is a broad concept comprised of many elements (such as, for example, investment risk, issuer and counterparty risk, compliance risk, operational risks, business continuity risks, etc.) the oversight of different types of risks is handled in different ways. For example, the Governance and Nominating Committee meets regularly with the CCO to discuss compliance and operational risks and the Audit Committee meets with the Treasurer and the Trust's independent public accounting firm to discuss, among other things, the internal control structure of the Trust's financial reporting function. The full Board receives reports from the Adviser and portfolio managers as to investment risks as well as other risks that may be also discussed in Audit Committee.

Information about Each Trustee's Qualification, Experience, Attributes or Skills

The Board believes that each of the Trustees has the qualifications, experience, attributes and skills ("Trustee Attributes") appropriate to their continued service as Trustees of the Trust in light of the Trust's business and structure. Each of the Trustees has substantial business and professional backgrounds that indicate they have the ability to critically review, evaluate and access information provided to them. Certain of these business and professional experiences are set forth in detail in the table above. In addition, the majority of the Trustees have served on boards for organizations other than the Trust, as well as having served on the Board of the Trust for a number of years. They therefore have substantial board experience and, in their service to the Trust, have gained substantial insight as to the operation of the Trust. The Board annually conducts a 'self-assessment' wherein the effectiveness of the Board and individual Trustees is reviewed.

In addition to the information provided in the table above, below is certain additional information concerning each particular Trustee and certain of their Trustee Attributes. The information provided below, and in the table above, is not all-inclusive. Many Trustee Attributes involve intangible elements, such as intelligence, integrity, work ethic, the ability to work together, the ability to communicate effectively, the ability to exercise judgment, the ability to ask incisive questions, and commitment to shareholder interests. In conducting its annual self-assessment, the Board has determined that the Trustees have the appropriate attributes and experience to continue to serve effectively as Trustees of the Trust.

David G. Mertens. Mr. Mertens has substantial mutual fund experience and is experienced with financial, accounting, investment and regulatory matters. He currently serves as Partner and Head of Business Development of QSV Equity Investors, LLC, (formerly known as Ballast Equity Management, LLC), a privately-held investment advisory firm. Mr. Mertens also gained substantial mutual fund experience through his tenure as Managing Director and Vice President of Jensen Investment Management, Inc. ("Jensen") from 2002 to 2017. Prior to Jensen, Mr. Mertens held various roles in sales and marketing management with Berger Financial Group, LLC from 1995 to 2002, ending as Senior Vice President of Institutional Marketing for Berger Financial Group and President of its limited purpose broker-dealer, Berger Distributors.

Joe D. Redwine. Mr. Redwine has substantial mutual fund experience and is experienced with financial, accounting, investment and regulatory matters through his experience as President and CEO of U.S.

Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, (now known as U.S. Bank Global Fund Services), a full-service provider to mutual funds and alternative investment products. In addition, he has extensive experience consulting with investment advisers regarding the legal structure of mutual funds, distribution channel analysis and actual distribution of those funds. Mr. Redwine serves as an Audit Committee Financial Expert for the Trust.

Michele Rackey. Ms. Rackey has substantial experience in mutual funds and investment management through her experience as CEO of Government Employees Benefits Association (GEBA) and also with The ARK Funds. Ms. Rackey is experienced with financial, accounting, investment and regulatory matters and serves as an Audit Committee Financial Expert for the Trust. Ms. Rackey was CEO of GEBA for 17 years and Chief Operating Officer of the ARK Funds for 9 years. Ms. Rackey has a BS in Business Administration from the University of Illinois at Chicago and has an MBA from Keller Graduate School of Management in Chicago. Ms. Rackey previously held FINRA series 6, 7 and 63 licenses as well as a Maryland Life and Health License.

Board Committees

The Trust has established the following three standing committees and the membership of each committee to assist in its oversight functions, including its oversight of the risks the Trust faces: the Audit Committee, the QLCC, and the Governance and Nominating Committee. There is no assurance, however, that the Board's committee structure will prevent or mitigate risks in actual practice. The Trust's committee structure is specifically not intended or designed to prevent or mitigate the Fund's investment risks. The Fund is designed for investors that are prepared to accept investment risk, including the possibility that as yet unforeseen risks may emerge in the future.

The Audit Committee is comprised of all of the Independent Trustees. Mr. Redwine is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee typically meets once per year with respect to the various series of the Trust. The function of the Audit Committee, with respect to each series of the Trust, is to review the scope and results of the audit and any matters bearing on the audit or the Fund's financial statements and to ensure the integrity of the Fund's pricing and financial reporting. The Audit Committee met twice with respect to the Fund during the Fund's fiscal year ended October 31, 2023.

The Audit Committee also serves as the QLCC for the Trust for the purpose of compliance with Rules 205.2(k) and 205.3(c) of the Code of Federal Regulations, regarding alternative reporting procedures for attorneys retained or employed by an issuer who appear and practice before the SEC on behalf of the issuer (the "issuer attorneys"). An issuer attorney who becomes aware of evidence of a material violation by the Trust, or by any officer, director, employee, or agent of the Trust, may report evidence of such material violation to the QLCC as an alternative to the reporting requirements of Rule 205.3(b) (which requires reporting to the chief legal officer and potentially "up the ladder" to other entities). The QLCC did not meet with respect to the Trust during the Fund's fiscal year ended October 31, 2023.

The Governance and Nominating Committee is comprised of all, and only of, the Independent Trustees. The Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for seeking and reviewing candidates for consideration as nominees for Trustees as is considered necessary from time to time and meets only as necessary. The Governance and Nominating Committee will consider nominees recommended by shareholders for vacancies on the Board. Recommendations for consideration by the Governance and Nominating Committee should be sent to the President of the Trust in writing together with the appropriate biographical information concerning each such proposed Nominee, and such recommendation must comply with the notice provisions set forth in the Trust's By-Laws. In general, to comply with such procedures, such nominations, together with all required biographical information, must be delivered to

and received by the President of the Trust at the principal executive office of the Trust between 120 and 150 days prior to the shareholder meeting at which any such nominee would be voted on.

The Governance and Nominating Committee meets regularly with respect to the various series of the Trust. The Governance and Nominating Committee is also responsible for, among other things, assisting the Board in its oversight of the Trust's compliance program under Rule 38a-1 under the 1940 Act, reviewing and making recommendations regarding Independent Trustee compensation and the Trustees' annual "self-assessment." Ms. Rackey is the Chairman of the Governance and Nominating Committee. The Nominating and Governance Committee met once with respect to the Trust during the Fund's fiscal year ended October 31, 2023.

Trustee Ownership of Fund Shares and Other Interests

The following table shows the amount of shares in the Fund and the amount of shares in other portfolios of the Trust owned by the Trustees as of the calendar year ended December 31, 2023.

	Dollar Range of Equity Securities in the Fund	
Independent Trustees	(None, \$1-\$10,000, \$10,001-\$50,000, \$50,001-\$100,000, Over \$100,000)	Aggregate Dollar Range of Fund Shares in the Trust
David G. Mertens	None	Over \$100,000
Joe D. Redwine	None	\$50,001-\$100,000
Michele Rackey	None	\$10,001-\$50,000

As of December 31, 2023, neither the Independent Trustees nor members of their immediate family, own securities beneficially or of record in the Advisor, the distributor, as defined below, or an affiliate of the Advisor or distributor. Accordingly, neither the Independent Trustees nor members of their immediate family, have direct or indirect interest, the value of which exceeds \$120,000, in the Advisor, the distributor or any of their affiliates. In addition, during the two most recently completed calendar years, neither the Independent Trustees nor members of their immediate families have conducted any transactions (or series of transactions) in which the amount involved exceeds \$120,000 and to which the Advisor, the distributor or any affiliate thereof was a party.

Compensation. Effective January 1, 2024, the Independent Trustees each receive an annual retainer of \$108,500 per year allocated among each of the various portfolios comprising the Trust, an additional \$6,000 per regularly scheduled Board meeting, and an additional \$500 per special meeting, paid by the Trust or applicable advisors/portfolios, as well as reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection with attendance at Board meetings. Prior to January 1, 2024, the annual retainer was \$102,500. The Trust Chairman, Chairman of the Audit Committee, and Chairman of the Governance and Nominating Committee each receive a separate annual fee of \$10,000, \$5,000, and \$3,000, respectively, provided that the separate fee for the Chairman of the Audit Committee will be waived if the same individual serves as both Trust Chairman and Audit Committee Chairman. The Trust has no pension or retirement plan. No other entity affiliated with the Trust pays any compensation to the Trustees. Set forth below is the compensation received by the Independent Trustees from the Fund for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023.

	Aggregate Compensation from the Fund	Pension or Retirement Benefits Accrued as Part of Fund Expenses	Estimated Annual Benefits Upon Retirement	Total Compensation from Fund Complex Paid to Trustees ⁽¹⁾
Independent Trustee				
David G. Mertens	\$3,916	None	None	\$3,916
Raymond B. Woolson ⁽²⁾	\$3,765	None	None	\$3,765
Joe D. Redwine	\$3,974	None	None	\$3,974
Michele Rackey	\$3,653	None	None	\$3,653

There are currently numerous portfolios comprising the Trust. The term "Fund Complex" applies only to the Fund. For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023, aggregate Independent Trustees' fees for the Trust were \$546,000.

CODE OF ETHICS

The Trust and the Advisor have each adopted separate Codes of Ethics under Rule 17j-1 of the 1940 Act. These Codes permit, subject to certain conditions, access persons of the Advisor to invest in securities that may be purchased or held by the Fund. The Distributor, as defined below, relies on the principal underwriter's exception under Rule 17j-1(c)(3), of the 1940 Act, specifically where the Distributor is not affiliated with the Trust or the Advisor, and no officer, director or general partner of the Distributor serves as an officer, director or general partner of the Trust or the Advisor.

PROXY VOTING POLICY

The Board has adopted Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures (the "Proxy Policies") on behalf of the Trust which delegate the responsibility for voting proxies to the Advisor, subject to the Board's continuing oversight. The Policies require that the Advisor vote proxies received in a manner consistent with the best interests of the Fund and its shareholders. The Proxy Policies also require the Advisor to present to the Board, at least annually, the Advisor's Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures ("Advisor's Proxy Policies") and a record of each proxy voted by the Advisor on behalf of the Fund, including a report on the resolution of all proxies identified by the Advisor as involving a conflict of interest.

The Advisor has adopted proxy voting policies and procedures and understands its obligations to ensure that the proxies are voted in the best interests of its clients. The Policies also require the Advisor to present to the Board, at least annually, its proxy voting guidelines used pursuant to the Policies, including a report on the resolution of all proxies identified by the Advisor as involving a conflict of interest and any material deviations from the guidelines. It is the policy of the Advisor to consider the guidelines when voting Fund proxies, though all proxy issues are considered on their own merits and voting decisions may take into account particular circumstances of the issuer. Matters not covered by the Advisor's guidelines are referred to the Fund's Board of Trustees for consideration. The Advisor has also established a Proxy Voting Manager responsible for maintaining the Policies, including the Advisor's proxy voting guidelines.

Certain of the Advisor's proxy voting guidelines are summarized below:

• In the area of individual securities management, mergers, acquisitions, divestitures and the like, the Advisor will judge each proposal on its merits keeping in mind the best interest of Fund shareholders,

⁽²⁾ Effective October 18, 2023, Mr. Ray Woolson retired from his service as Trustee and Chairman of the Board to attend to health-related matters.

however, the Advisor generally votes for proposals that enhance shareholder rights and against proposals that tend to limit shareholder rights;

- With respect to corporate takeover defenses and related actions, the Advisor generally votes in favor of proposals that enhance the shareholders' bargaining position;
- With respect to changes in compensation plans, because the Advisor recognizes that companies need to provide competitive compensation, it will generally vote for proposals that provide incentive-based compensation and against proposals that do not; and
- Regarding changes in corporate structure and capitalization, the Advisor generally supports actions
 that enable companies to gain better access to capital markets, but will generally vote against
 proposals that appear to entrench management and that do not provide economic value to
 shareholders.

Although many proxy proposals can be voted in accordance with the guidelines established by the Proxy Committee, some proposals will require special consideration, and the Advisor will make a decision on a case-by-case basis in these situations.

Conflicts of Interest. In the event that a proposal raises a material conflict of interest between the Advisor and the Fund, the Advisor will consult the Board of Trustees of the Fund and will abide by their recommendation with respect to the proposal, which may include, among other things; following the Board's voting recommendation, abstaining, or following the recommendation of an independent third party.

The Trust is required to annually file Form N-PX, which lists the Fund's complete proxy voting record for the 12-month period ending June 30. The Fund's proxy voting record is available without charge, upon request, by calling toll-free 1-866-688-8775 and on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

CONTROL PERSONS, PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS, AND MANAGEMENT OWNERSHIP

A principal shareholder is any person who owns of record or beneficially 5% or more of the outstanding shares of the Fund. A control person is one who owns beneficially or through controlled companies more than 25% of the voting securities of a company or acknowledges the existence of control. Shareholders with a controlling interest could affect the outcome of voting or the direction of management of the Fund. For control persons only, if a control person is a company, the table also indicates the control person's parent, if any, and the jurisdiction under the laws of which the control person is organized.

As of January 31, 2024, the entities listed below were principal shareholders and/or control persons of the Fund

Name and Address	Parent Company	Jurisdiction	% Ownership	Type of Ownership
Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. Special Custody Account FBO Customers Attn Mutual Funds 211 Main Street San Francisco, CA 94105-1901	The Charles Schwab Corporation	DE	69.37%	Record
Mid Atlantic Trust Company FBO Fort Pitt Capital Group 401(k) Prof. 1251 Waterfront Place, Suite 525 Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4228	N/A	N/A	10.14%	Record
National Financial Services LLC 499 Washington Blvd. Fl. 4th Jersey City, NJ 07310-2010	N/A	N/A	5.20%	Record

Management Ownership Information. As of January 31, 2024, the Trustees and Officers of the Trust, as a group, beneficially owned less than 1% of the outstanding shares of the Fund.

INVESTMENT ADVISOR AND ADVISORY AGREEMENT

Fort Pitt Capital Group, LLC, 680 Andersen Drive, Foster Plaza Ten, Suite 350, Pittsburgh, PA 15220, serves as investment advisor to the Fund. Fort Pitt Capital Group, LLC, is an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Focus Financial Partners, LLC ("Focus"), a Delaware limited liability company that is a strategic and financial investor in independently-managed wealth management firms.

The Advisor serves as investment advisor to the Fund pursuant to an Investment Advisory Agreement with the Trust (the "Advisory Agreement"). The Advisor, subject to the supervision of the Trustees, provides a continuous investment program for the Fund, including investment research and management with respect to securities, investments and cash equivalents, in accordance with the Fund's investment goal, policies and restrictions as set forth in its prospectus, this SAI and the resolutions of the Trustees. The Advisor is responsible for effecting all security transactions on behalf of the Fund, including the allocation of principal business and portfolio brokerage and the negotiation of commissions. The Advisor also maintains books and records with respect to the securities transactions of the Fund and furnishes to the Trustees such periodic or other reports as the Trustees may request. To protect the Fund, the Advisor and its officers, directors and employees are covered by fidelity insurance. The Advisor pays all expenses incurred by it in connection with its activities except the cost of securities (including brokerage

commissions, if any) purchased for the Fund. The services furnished by the Advisor are not exclusive, and the Advisor is free to perform similar services for others.

Under the Advisory Agreement, the Advisor is entitled to receive a monthly management fee from the Fund. The Advisor's fee schedule provides that the Fund will pay the Advisor a flat fee of 0.76% of the Fund's average daily net assets. The fee is computed at the close of business on the last business day of each month in accordance with the Advisory Agreement. The Advisor has contractually agreed to waive its management fee or reimburse the Fund for expenses otherwise payable by the Fund ("Operating Expenses Limitation Agreement") to the extent necessary to ensure that net operating expenses of the Fund (excluding interest, taxes, brokerage commissions, AFFE, extraordinary expenses, Rule 12b-1 fees, shareholder servicing fees or any other class-specific expenses) do not exceed 1.00% of the Fund's average daily net assets through at least February 27, 2025. The Advisor may request recoupment of previously waived fees and paid expenses in any subsequent month in the thirty-six month period from the date of the management fee reduction and expense payment if the aggregate amount actually paid by the Fund toward the operating expenses for such fiscal year (taking into account the reimbursement) will not cause the Fund to exceed the lesser of: (1) the expense limitation in place at the time of the management fee reduction and expense payment; or (2) the expense limitation in place at the time of the reimbursement. The management fees accrued for the Fund for the three most recent fiscal years ended October 31 are shown below.

	2023	2022	2021
Total Management Fees Accrued	\$491,110	\$572,603	\$661,733
Management Fees Waived	\$110,211	\$102,748	\$93,290
Net Management Fees Paid to Advisor	\$380,899	\$469,855	\$568,443

The Fund's management fees prior to January 1, 2021, were based on a management fee of 1.00% of average daily net assets. Effective January 1, 2021, the investment advisory fee for the Fund was reduced to a flat rate of 0.76% of the Fund's average daily net assets.

Under the terms of the Operating Expenses Limitation Agreement, the Advisor may recapture a portion of the management fees waived/expenses reimbursed no later than the dates shown below:

	October 31,	
2026	2025	2024
\$110,211	\$102,748	\$93,290

The Advisory Agreement may be continued from year to year, provided that such continuance is approved at least annually by a vote of the holders of a "majority" (as defined in the 1940 Act) of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund, or by the Trustees, and in either event by vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval.

PORTFOLIO MANAGER

The Advisor serves as investment advisor to the Fund. Dan Eye serves as the Portfolio Manager of the Fund. The portfolio manager is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the Fund and manages the Advisor's separately managed accounts in addition to the Fund. Information regarding the other accounts (not including the Fund) managed by Mr. Eye, including the number of accounts, the total assets in those accounts, and the categorization of the accounts as of October 31, 2023, is set forth below.

	Total Accounts (excluding the Fund)		Accounts with Based	Performance I Fees
Portfolio Manager Other Accounts	Number	Assets (in billions)	Number	Assets
Dan Eye				
Registered Investment Companies	0	\$0	0	\$0
Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	0	\$0	0	\$0
Other Accounts	9,054	\$4.8	0	\$0

Material Conflicts of Interest

The Advisor has not identified any material conflicts between the Fund and other accounts managed by the firm. However, actual or apparent conflicts may arise in connection with the day-to-day management of the Fund and other accounts. The management of the Fund and other accounts results in unequal time and attention being devoted to the Fund and other accounts. The Advisor's management fees for the services it provides to other accounts may be higher or lower than the advisory fees it receives from the Fund. On behalf of all clients, including the Fund, the Advisor strives to provide investment advice that is the most cost effective for them given the size of their investable assets, time horizon and investment objectives. The firm uses a modified random allocation procedure to reduce the possibility that the Fund or another account may receive favorable treatment.

No direct conflicts of interest between the Fund and the Advisor exist. Fort Pitt has an Asset Management group which is made up of the portfolio management, research and trading staff of the firm. Dan Eye serves as the sole Portfolio Manager of the Fund; however, all investment decisions are discussed by the Asset Management group prior to implementation. The Portfolio Manager relies on the members of the Asset Management group in formulating trades for the firm's equity strategies, which includes the Fund.

Compensation

As of October 31, 2023, the portfolio manager receives a base salary to manage both the Fund and other separate accounts. The base salary is fixed on an annual basis by the Board of Directors of the Advisor and is in line with current industry averages. If the Advisor is profitable at year end, then the directors of the Advisor may choose to make a profit sharing contribution as additional compensation. The Portfolio Manager's compensation is not based on the performance of the Fund or any other separate account that he manages, nor is such compensation based on the value of assets in the Fund or any other separate account.

Mr. Eye participates in the Advisor's 401(k) retirement plan that is available to all employees of the Advisor after completion of six months of service. The Advisor's retirement plan is run under the ERISA safe harbor provisions, whereby the Advisor will make contributions to all eligible participants, regardless of whether participants contribute to the plan. The safe harbor contribution is equal to 3% of the employee's eligible compensation. The safe harbor contribution is 100% vested immediately. The Advisor may make additional matching and profit-sharing contributions based on the profitability of the firm.

Due to his minority ownership stake in FP Capital Management, LLC, the management company of the Advisor, the remainder of the portfolio manager's compensation consists of discretionary distributions from FP Capital Management, LLC. It is the Advisor's belief that this arrangement encourages the portfolio manager to focus on consistent, long-term results for the Fund.

Securities Owned in the Fund by the Portfolio Manager. As of October 31, 2023, Mr. Eye beneficially owned the following dollar range of shares of the Fund:

	Dollar Range of Fund Shares Beneficially Owned
	(None, \$1-\$10,000, \$10,001-\$50,000, \$50,001-\$100,000, \$100,001-\$500,000,
Portfolio Manager	\$500,001-\$1,000,000, or Over \$1,000,000)
Dan Eye	\$100,001 - \$500,000

SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Fund Administrator, Transfer Agent and Fund Accountant

Pursuant to an administration agreement (the "Administration Agreement"), Fund Services, 615 East Michigan Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202, (the "Administrator") acts as the administrator to the Fund. Fund Services provides certain services to the Fund including, among other responsibilities, coordinating the negotiation of contracts and fees with, and the monitoring of performance and billing of, the Fund's independent contractors and agents; preparation for signature by an officer of the Trust of all documents required to be filed for compliance by the Trust and the Fund with applicable laws and regulations, excluding those of the securities laws of various states; arranging for the computation of performance data, including NAV per share and yield; responding to shareholder inquiries; and arranging for the maintenance of books and records of the Fund, and providing, at its own expense, office facilities, equipment and personnel necessary to carry out its duties. In this capacity, Fund Services does not have any responsibility or authority for the management of the Fund, the determination of investment policy, or for any matter pertaining to the distribution of Fund shares.

Fund Services also is entitled to certain out-of-pocket expenses. Fund Services also acts as fund accountant, transfer agent (the "Transfer Agent") and dividend disbursing agent under separate agreements. Additionally, the Administrator provides Chief Compliance Officer services to the Trust under a separate agreement. The cost of the Chief Compliance Officer services is charged to the Fund and approved by the Board annually.

For the fiscal years indicated below, the Fund paid the following fees to Fund Services for fund administration services (including fund accounting):

2021	2022	2023
\$103,270	\$95,519	\$86,744

Custodian

Pursuant to a Custody Agreement between the Trust and U.S. Bank National Association, located at 1555 North RiverCenter Drive, Suite 302, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53212 (the "Custodian"), the Custodian serves as the custodian of the Fund's assets, holds the Fund's portfolio securities in safekeeping, and keeps all necessary records and documents relating to its duties. The Custodian is compensated with an asset-based fee plus transaction fees and is reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses.

The Custodian and Administrator do not participate in decisions relating to the purchase and sale of securities by the Fund. The Administrator, Transfer Agent, and Custodian are affiliated entities under the

common control of U.S. Bancorp. The Custodian and its affiliates may participate in revenue sharing arrangements with the service providers of mutual funds in which the Fund may invest.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Legal Counsel

Tait, Weller & Baker LLP, Two Liberty Place, 50 South 16th Street, Suite 2900, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19102, is the independent registered public accounting firm for the Fund, whose services include auditing the Fund's financial statements and the performance of related tax services.

Sullivan & Worcester LLP ("Sullivan & Worcester"), 1633 Broadway, 32nd Floor, New York, New York 10019, serves as legal counsel to the Trust. Sullivan & Worcester also serves as independent legal counsel to the Board of Trustees.

DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT

The Trust has entered into a Distribution Agreement (the "Distribution Agreement") with Quasar Distributors, LLC, Three Canal Plaza, Suite 100, Portland, Maine 04101 pursuant to which the Distributor acts as the Fund's distributor, provides certain administration services and promotes and arranges for the sale of Fund shares. The offering of the Fund's shares is continuous. The Distributor is a registered broker-dealer and member of FINRA.

The Distribution Agreement continues in effect only if such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by the Board or by vote of a majority of the Fund's outstanding voting securities and, in either case, by a majority of the Trustees who are not parties to the Distribution Agreement or "interested persons" (as defined in the 1940 Act) of any such party. The Distribution Agreement is terminable without penalty by the Trust on behalf of the Fund on 60 days' written notice when authorized either by a majority vote of the Fund's shareholders or by vote of a majority of the Board, including a majority of the Trustees who are not "interested persons" (as defined in the 1940 Act) of the Trust, or by the Distributor on 60 days' written notice, and will automatically terminate in the event of its "assignment" (as defined in the 1940 Act).

Quasar is also the distributor for the First American Funds. First American Retail Prime Obligations, a series of First American Funds, is available through the exchange privilege. Quasar is entitled to receive a fee from the First American Funds for distribution services at the annual rate of 0.25% of the average daily net assets value of the shares in connection with these exchanges.

Distribution Plan

The Board of Trustees has adopted (but has not yet implemented), and the Fund's shareholders have approved, a distribution plan pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act (the "Distribution Plan"). If the Distribution Plan is implemented, the Fund will be authorized to use the assets of the Fund to reimburse the Advisor, the Distributor or others for expenses incurred by such parties in the promotion and distribution of the shares of the Fund. If implemented, the Distribution Plan will authorize the use of distribution fees to pay expenses including, but not limited to, printing prospectuses and reports used for sales purposes, preparing advertising and sales literature, and other distribution-related expenses. The maximum amount payable under the Distribution Plan is 0.25% of the Fund's average daily net assets on an annual basis. Because these fees would be paid out of the Fund's assets on an ongoing basis, over time these fees would increase the cost of your investment.

FINRA's maximum sales charge rule relating to mutual fund shares establishes limits on all types of sales charges, whether front-end, deferred or asset-based. This rule limits the aggregate distribution fees to which shareholders might be subject under the terms of the Distribution Plan.

The Distribution Plan may be extended annually by the approval of a majority of the Fund's Board of Trustees, including a majority of the Independent Trustees. As adopted, the Fund does not intend to implement the Distribution Plan. This means that any current distribution-related expenses are not paid by the Fund but are being paid by the Advisor.

If implemented, the Distribution Plan would require that any person authorized to direct the disposition of monies paid or payable by the Fund pursuant to the Distribution Plan or any related agreement prepare and furnish to the Trustees for their review, at least quarterly, written reports complying with the requirements of Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act and setting out the amounts expended under the Distribution Plan and the purposes for which those expenditures were made. The Distribution Plan provides that so long as it is in effect the selection and nomination of the Independent Trustees will be committed to the discretion of the Independent Trustees then in office.

The Distribution Plan would continue in effect only so long as its continuance is specifically approved at least annually by the Trustees in the manner described above for Trustee approval of the Distribution Plan. The Distribution Plan could be terminated at any time by a majority vote of the Independent Trustees who have no direct or indirect financial interest in the operations of the Distribution Plan or in any agreement related to the Distribution Plan or by vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund.

The Distribution Plan may not be enacted or amended so as to materially increase the amount of the distribution fees for the Fund unless the amendment is approved by a vote of at least a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund. In addition, no material amendment may be made unless approved by the Trustees in the manner described above for Trustee approval of the Distribution Plan.

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND TURNOVER

The Fund's portfolio securities transactions are placed by the Advisor. The goal of the Fund is to obtain the best available prices in its portfolio transactions, taking into account the costs, promptness of executions and other qualitative considerations. There is no pre-existing commitment to place orders with any broker, dealer or member of an exchange. The Advisor evaluates a wide range of criteria in seeking the most favorable price and market for the execution of transactions, including the broker's commission rate, execution capability, positioning and distribution capabilities, information in regard to the availability of securities, trading patterns, statistical or factual information, opinions pertaining to trading strategy, back office efficiency, ability to handle difficult trades, financial stability, and prior performance in servicing the Advisor and its clients. In transactions on equity securities and U.S. government securities executed in the over-the-counter market, purchases and sales are transacted directly with principal market-makers except in those circumstances where, in the opinion of the Advisor, better prices and executions are available elsewhere.

The Advisor, when effecting purchases and sales of portfolio securities for the account of the Fund, will seek execution of trades either (i) at the most favorable and competitive rate of commission charged by any broker, dealer or member of an exchange; or (ii) at a higher rate of commission charges, if reasonable, in relation to brokerage and research services provided to the Fund or the Advisor by such member, broker, or dealer. Such services may include, but are not limited to, any one or more of the following: information as to the availability of securities for purchase or sale, statistical or factual information, or opinions pertaining to investments. The Advisor may use research and services provided by brokers and dealers in servicing all its clients, including the Fund, and not all such services will be used by the Advisor in connection with the Fund. In accordance with the provisions of Section 28(e) of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Advisor may from time to time receive services and products which serve both research and non-research functions. In such event, the Advisor makes a good faith determination of the anticipated research and non-research use of the product or service and allocates brokerage only with respect to the research component. The execution of a transaction for any portfolio by a broker or dealer is permitted only if the selection of that broker or dealer is not influenced by considerations about the sale of Fund shares. The Fund paid the following in brokerage commissions for the three prior fiscal years ended October 31:

	2021	2022	2023(1)
Brokerage Fees Paid	\$819	\$2,650	\$5,267

⁽¹⁾ The increase in brokerage commissions for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023, was due to ongoing rebalancing activity.

The Advisor provides investment advisory services to individuals and other institutional clients, including corporate pension plans, profit-sharing and other employee benefit trusts. There may be occasions on which other investment advisory clients advised by the Advisor may also invest in the same securities as the Fund. When these clients buy or sell the same securities at substantially the same time, the Advisor averages the transactions as to price and allocates the amount of available investments in a manner which is believed to be equitable to each client, including the Fund. On the other hand, to the extent permitted by law, the Advisor will aggregate the securities to be sold or purchased for the Fund with those to be sold or purchased for other clients managed by it in order to obtain lower brokerage commissions, if any.

The SEC requires the Fund to provide certain information regarding securities held of its regular brokers or dealers (or their parents) as of the Fund's most recent fiscal year end. The following table identifies those brokers or dealers and the value of the Fund's aggregate holdings of the securities of each such issuer as of the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023:

Broker-Dealer	Aggregate Value
Charles Schwab & Co., Inc.	\$2,048,451

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023, the Fund did not pay any affiliates of the Distributor brokerage commissions nor were any fees paid to an affiliate of the Distributor in connection with transactions involving securities on which the Fund paid commissions.

The Advisor did not direct the Fund's brokerage transactions to a broker because of research services during the Fund's fiscal year ended October 31, 2023.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT PURCHASES AND SALES

Purchasing Shares

You may purchase shares of the Fund without any sales charge directly from the Fund, and through certain investment advisors, financial planners, brokers, dealers or other investment professionals or through fund supermarkets or retirement plans. Shares of the Fund are offered on a continuous basis by the Fund's Distributor. Other persons may receive compensation for their marketing and shareholder servicing activities.

The Fund reserves the right to reject any purchase order and to suspend the offering of shares of the Fund. The minimum initial investment is \$2,500 and additional investments must total at least \$100. The

minimum initial investment for qualified retirement accounts ("IRAs") is \$2,500 (\$2,000 for Coverdell Education Savings Accounts) and there is no minimum for subsequent investments. The Fund may also change or waive its policies concerning minimum investment amounts at any time.

The Fund does not intend to issue certificates representing shares purchased. You will have the same rights of ownership with respect to such shares as if certificates had been issued.

You may buy shares at the Fund's NAV per share, which is calculated as of the close of the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") (generally, 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time) every day that the NYSE is open for business. As of the date of this SAI, the Fund is informed that the NYSE observes the following holidays: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Juneteenth, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

The NAV is determined by dividing the value of the Fund's securities, cash and other assets, minus all expenses and liabilities, by the number of shares outstanding. The Fund's securities are valued each day at their market value, which usually means the last quoted sale price on the security's principal exchange on that day. Expenses and fees of the Fund, including management, distribution and shareholder servicing fees, are accrued daily and taken into account for the purpose of determining the NAV.

Cash and receivables are valued at their realizable amounts. Interest is recorded as accrued and dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Generally, the Fund's investments are valued at market value or, in the absence of a market value, at fair value as determined in good faith by the Fund's valuation designee pursuant to procedures adopted by the Advisor. The Board has designated the Advisor as its "valuation designee" under Rule 2a-5 of the 1940 Act, subject to its oversight. Securities that are traded on more than one exchange are valued on the exchange determined by the Advisor to be the primary market. Portfolio securities listed on the NASDAQ Global Market® system for which market quotations are readily available shall be valued using the NASDAQ® Official Closing Price ("NOCP"). If the NOCP is not available, such securities are valued at the last quoted sale price of the day or, if there is no such reported sale, within the range of the most recent quoted bid and ask prices. Over-the-counter ("OTC") securities that are not traded in the NASDAQ Global Market® system shall be valued at the most recent trade price.

The current market value of any option held by the Fund is its last sale price on the relevant exchange before the time when assets are valued. Lacking any sales that day or if the last sale price is outside the bid and ask prices, options are valued within the range of the current closing bid and ask prices if the valuation is believed to reflect the contract's market value.

Debt securities are valued on the basis of valuations provided by independent third-party pricing services, or at fair value as determined in good faith by the valuation designee. Any such pricing service, in determining value, will use information with respect to transactions in the securities being valued, quotations from dealers, market transactions in comparable securities, analyses and evaluations of various relationships between securities and yield to maturity information.

All other assets of the Fund are valued in such manner as the valuation designee in good faith deems appropriate to reflect their fair value.

The value of a foreign security is determined as of the close of trading on the foreign exchange on which it is traded or as of the scheduled close of trading on the NYSE, if that is earlier. Generally, trading in corporate bonds, U.S. government securities and money market instruments is substantially completed each day at various times before the scheduled close of the NYSE. The value of these securities used in computing the NAV of each class is determined as of such time.

When you buy shares, if you submit a check or a draft that is returned unpaid to the Fund, the Fund may impose a \$25 charge against your account for each returned item. All checks, drafts, wires and other payment mediums used to buy or sell shares of the Fund must be denominated in U.S. dollars.

Selling Shares

Shares of the Fund may be redeemed on any business day that the Fund calculates its NAV. The sale price will be the next NAV calculated after your order is received by the Fund's Transfer Agent, or by certain third parties who are authorized to receive redemption requests on the Fund's behalf. No fees are imposed by the Fund when shares are sold. There is a \$15 fee that the Fund's Transfer Agent may assess if you choose to redeem shares by a bank wire transfer. This fee is subject to change. You may receive your sale proceeds by check, wire transfer, or electronic funds transfer.

You may sell your shares by giving instructions to the Fund's Transfer Agent by mail or by telephone. The Fund will use reasonable procedures to confirm that instructions communicated by telephone are genuine and, if the procedures are followed, will not be liable for any losses due to unauthorized or fraudulent telephone transactions. During times of drastic economic or market changes, the telephone redemption privilege may be difficult to implement and the Fund reserves the right to suspend this privilege. The Fund may suspend a shareholder's right to sell shares if the NYSE restricts trading, the SEC declares an emergency or for other reasons as permitted by law.

Certain written requests to sell shares require a signature guarantee. For example, a signature guarantee may be required if your address of record on the account application has been changed within the last fifteen (15) days or if you ask that the proceeds be sent to a different person or address. In addition, all redemptions of \$50,000 or more from any shareholder account require a signature guarantee. A signature guarantee is used to help protect you and the Fund from fraud. You can obtain a signature guarantee from most banks and securities dealers, but not from a notary public. Signature guarantees must appear together with the signature(s) of the registered owner(s), on: (1) a written request for redemption; or (2) a separate instrument of assignment, which should specify the total number of shares to be redeemed (this "stock power" may be obtained from the Fund or from most banks or stock brokers).

If you sell shares through a securities dealer or investment professional, it is such person's responsibility to transmit the order to the Fund in a timely fashion. Any loss to you resulting from failure to do so must be settled between you and such person.

Delivery of the proceeds of a redemption of shares purchased and paid for by check shortly before the receipt of the request may be delayed until the Fund determines that the custodian bank has completed collection of the purchase check. The Board of Trustees may suspend the right of redemption or postpone the date of payment during any period when (a) trading on the NYSE is restricted as determined by the SEC, or such exchange is closed for other than weekends and holidays; (b) the SEC has by order permitted such suspension; or (c) an emergency, as defined by rules of the SEC, exists during which time the sale of Fund shares or valuation of securities held by the Fund is not reasonably practicable.

Redeeming shares through a systematic withdrawal plan may reduce or exhaust the shares in your account if payments exceed distributions received from the Fund. This is especially likely to occur if there is a market decline. If a withdrawal amount exceeds the value of your account, your account will be closed and the remaining balance in your account will be sent to you. Because the amount withdrawn under the plan may be more than your actual yield or income, part of the payment may be a return of your investment.

If dividend checks are returned to the Fund marked "unable to forward" by the postal service, the Fund will consider this a request by you to change your dividend option to reinvest all distributions. The proceeds will be reinvested in additional shares at the Fund's then current NAV until the Fund receives new instructions.

If mail is returned as undeliverable or the Fund is unable to locate you or verify your current mailing address, the costs of any efforts to find you may be deducted from your account. These costs may include a percentage of the account when a search company charges a percentage fee in exchange for its location services

Distribution or redemption checks sent to you do not earn interest or any other income during the time the checks remain uncashed. Neither the Fund nor its affiliates will be liable for any loss caused by your failure to cash such checks.

Redemptions In-Kind

The Trust has elected to be governed by Rule 18f-1 under the 1940 Act so that the Fund is obligated to redeem their shares solely in cash up to the lesser of \$250,000 or 1% of its net asset value during any 90-day period for any shareholder of the Fund. The Fund has reserved the right to pay the redemption price of its shares in excess of \$250,000 or 1% of its net asset value either totally or partially, by a distribution in-kind of portfolio securities (instead of cash). The securities so distributed would be valued at the same amount as that assigned to them in calculating the NAV per share for the shares being sold. If a shareholder receives a distribution in-kind, the shareholder could incur brokerage or other charges in converting the securities to cash. A redemption, whether in cash or in-kind, is a taxable event for you.

The Fund does not intend to hold any significant percentage of its portfolio in illiquid securities, although the Fund, like virtually all mutual funds, may from time to time hold a small percentage of securities that are illiquid. In the unlikely event the Fund were to elect to make an in-kind redemption, the Fund expects that it would follow the Trust protocol of making such distribution by way of a pro rata distribution of securities that are traded on a public securities market or are otherwise considered liquid pursuant to the Fund's liquidity policies and procedures. Except as otherwise may be approved by the Trustees, the securities that would not be included in an in-kind distribution include (1) unregistered securities which, if distributed, would be required to be registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the "1933 Act"), as amended; (2) securities issued by entities in countries which (a) restrict or prohibit the holding of securities by non-nationals other than through qualified investment vehicles, such as a fund, or (b) permit transfers of ownership of securities to be effected only by transactions conducted on a local stock exchange; and (3) certain Fund assets that, although they may be liquid and marketable, must be traded through the marketplace or with the counterparty to the transaction in order to effect a change in beneficial ownership.

If the value of your account falls below \$1,000 due to redemptions and not market action, the Fund may mail you a notice requesting that you increase your balance. If your account value is still below \$1,000

sixty (60) days after receipt of such request, the Fund may automatically close your account and send you the proceeds.

DIVIDENDS

A shareholder will automatically receive all income dividends and capital gain distributions in additional full and fractional shares of the Fund at their NAV as of the date of payment unless the shareholder elects to receive such dividends or distributions in cash. Shareholders will receive a confirmation of each new transaction in their account. The Trust will confirm all account activity, including the payment of dividend and capital gain distributions and transactions made as a result of a Systematic Withdrawal Plan or an Automatic Investment Plan. Shareholders may rely on these statements in lieu of stock certificates. Stock certificates representing shares of the Fund will not be issued.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON DISTRIBUTIONS AND TAXES

In order to qualify as a regulated investment company, the Fund must, among other things, derive at least 90% of its gross income each year from dividends, interest, payments with respect to loans of stock and securities, gains from the sale or other disposition of stock or securities or foreign currency gains related to investments in stock or securities, or other income (generally including gains from options, futures or forward contracts) derived with respect to the business of investing in stock, securities or currency, and net income derived from an interest in a qualified publicly traded partnership. The Fund also must satisfy both of the following asset diversification tests: At the end of each quarter of each taxable year, (i) at least 50% of the value of the Fund's total assets must consist of cash and cash items (including receivables), U.S. government securities, the securities of other regulated investment companies, and other securities, with such other securities being limited in respect of any one issuer to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of the Fund's total assets and not more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer; and (ii) not more than 25% of the value of the Fund's total assets may be invested in the securities of any one issuer (other than U.S. government securities or the securities of other regulated investment companies), the securities of any two or more issuers (other than the securities of other regulated investment companies) that the Fund controls (by owning 20% or more of their outstanding voting stock) and that are determined to be engaged in the same or similar trades or businesses or related trades or businesses, or the securities of one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships. The Fund also must distribute each taxable year sufficient dividends to its shareholders to claim a dividends-paid deduction equal to at least the sum of 90% of the Fund's investment company taxable income (before the dividends paid deduction), which generally includes dividends, interest, and the excess of net short-term capital gain over net long-term capital loss and 90% of the Fund's net taxexempt interest, if any.

Distributions of Net Investment Income. The Fund generally receives income in the form of dividends and interest on its investments. This income, less expenses incurred in the operation of the Fund, constitutes its net investment income from which dividends may be paid to you. If you are a taxable investor, any distributions by the Fund from such income will be taxable to you as ordinary income, whether you take them in cash or in additional shares.

Distributions of Capital Gains. The Fund may derive capital gains and losses in connection with sales or other dispositions of its portfolio securities. Distributions derived from the excess of net short-term capital gain over net long-term capital loss will be taxable to you as ordinary income. Distributions paid from long-term capital gains realized by the Fund will be taxable to you as long-term capital gain, regardless of how long you have held your shares in the Fund. Any net short-term or long-term capital

gains realized by the Fund (net of any capital loss carryovers) generally will be distributed once each year, and may be distributed more frequently, if necessary, in order to reduce or eliminate federal excise or income taxes on the Fund.

Effect of Foreign Taxes. The Fund may be subject to foreign withholding taxes on income from certain foreign securities. This, in turn, could reduce the dividends paid to you. Based on the principal investment strategy of the Fund, it is not expected that the Fund will be eligible to pass through to shareholders any credits or deductions with respect to such foreign taxes.

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA") imposes a 30% withholding tax on the Fund's ordinary income distributions, which generally applies if paid to a foreign entity unless: (i) if the foreign entity is a "foreign financial institution," it undertakes certain due diligence, reporting, withholding and certification obligations, (ii) if the foreign entity is not a "foreign financial institution," it identifies certain of its U.S. investors or (iii) the foreign entity is otherwise excepted under FATCA. If applicable, and subject to any intergovernmental agreement, withholding under FATCA is required generally with respect to ordinary income distributions from the Fund. If withholding is required under FATCA on a payment related to your shares, investors that otherwise would not be subject to withholding (or that otherwise would be entitled to a reduced rate of withholding) on such payment generally will be required to seek a refund or credit from the IRS to obtain the benefits of such exemption or reduction. The Fund will not pay any additional amounts in respect to amounts withheld under FATCA. You should consult your tax advisor regarding the effect of FATCA based on your individual circumstances.

Effect of Foreign Investments on Distributions. Most foreign exchange gains realized on the sale of debt securities are treated as ordinary income by the Fund. Similarly, foreign exchange losses realized by the Fund on the sale of debt securities generally are treated as ordinary losses by the Fund. These gains when distributed will be taxable to you as ordinary dividends, and any losses will reduce the Fund's ordinary income otherwise available for distribution. This treatment could increase or decrease the Fund's ordinary income distributions to you and may cause some or all of the Fund's previously distributed income to be classified as a return of capital. A return of capital generally is not taxable to you upon distribution; however, it reduces your tax basis in your shares, which can lead to increased capital gain or reduced capital loss upon redemption of your Fund shares.

PFIC securities. The Fund may invest in securities of foreign entities that could be deemed for tax purposes to be passive foreign investment companies ("PFICs"). When investing in PFIC securities, if possible under the tax rules, the Fund intends to mark-to-market these securities and recognize any gains at the end of its fiscal and excise (described below) tax years. Deductions for losses are allowable only to the extent of any current or previously recognized gains. These gains (reduced by allowable losses) are treated as ordinary income that the Fund is required to distribute, even though it has not sold the securities. The Fund does not guarantee and can give no assurances that its distributions will be sufficient to eliminate all PFIC-related taxes in every year.

Information on the Tax Character of Distributions. The Fund will inform you of the amount and character of your distributions at the time they are paid and will advise you of the tax status for federal income tax purposes of such distributions shortly after the close of each calendar year. If you have not held Fund shares for a full year, the Fund may report and distribute to you as ordinary income or capital gain a percentage of income that is not equal to the actual amount of such income earned during the period of your investment in the Fund.

Election to be Taxed as a Regulated Investment Company ("RIC"). The Fund has elected and intends to continue to be treated as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and intends to so qualify during the current fiscal year. As a RIC, the Fund generally pays no federal income tax on the income and gains it distributes. The Board reserves the right not to maintain the qualification of the Fund as a RIC if it determines such course of action to be beneficial to you. In such a case, the Fund will be subject to federal, and possibly state, corporate income taxes on its taxable income and gains, and distributions to you will be taxed as ordinary dividend income to the extent of the Fund's earnings and profits.

Excise Tax Distribution Requirements. The Code requires the Fund to distribute at least 98% of its taxable ordinary income earned during the calendar year and 98.2% of its capital gain net income earned during the twelve-month period ending October 31 (in addition to 100% of undistributed amounts from the prior year) to you by December 31 of each year in order to avoid nondeductible federal excise taxes. The Fund intends to declare and pay sufficient dividends in December (which may be paid in January, in which case you must treat such dividends as received in December) but does not guarantee and can give no assurances that its distributions will be sufficient to eliminate all such taxes in every year.

Redemption of Fund Shares. Redemptions including redemptions in-kind and exchanges of Fund shares are taxable transactions for federal and state income tax purposes that could cause you to recognize a taxable gain or loss. If you redeem your fund shares or exchange them for shares of the First American Retail Prime Obligations Fund, you are required to report any gain or loss. If you hold your shares as a capital asset, any gain or loss that you realize will be capital gain or loss and will be short-term or long-term, generally depending on how long you have owned your shares. Any loss incurred on the redemption or exchange of shares held for six (6) months or less will be treated as a long-term capital loss to the extent of any long-term capital gains distributed to you by the Fund on those shares. All or a portion of any loss that you realize upon the redemption or sale of your Fund shares will be disallowed to the extent that you purchase other shares in the Fund (through reinvestment of dividends or otherwise) within thirty (30) days before or after your redemption or exchange. Any loss disallowed under these rules will be added to your tax basis in the new shares you purchase.

U.S. Government Obligations. Most states grant tax-free status to dividends paid to you from interest earned on direct obligations of the U.S. government, subject in some states to minimum investment or reporting requirements that must be met by the Fund. Investments in GNMA or FNMA securities, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. government securities generally do not qualify for tax-free treatment. The rules on exclusion of this income are different for corporations.

Dividends-Received Deduction for Corporations. Dividends (excluding capital gain dividends) paid by the Fund generally will qualify for the 70% dividends-received deduction for corporations, but the portion of the dividends so qualified depends on the aggregate taxable qualifying dividend income received by the Fund from domestic (U.S.) sources. The dividends-received deduction will be available only with respect to dividends reported by the Fund as eligible for such treatment. Additionally, if requested, the Fund will send to any such corporate shareholders a statement each year advising them of the amount reported by the Fund as eligible for such treatment.

Qualified Dividend Income Distribution for Individual Shareholders. A portion of the dividends paid by the Fund may be taxable to non-corporate shareholders at long-term capital gain rates, which are significantly lower than the highest rate that applies to ordinary income. If the qualifying dividend income received by the Fund is equal to 95% (or a greater percentage) of the Fund's gross income (exclusive of

net capital gain) in any taxable year, all of the ordinary income dividends paid by a Fund will be qualifying dividend income. The Fund will advise you of the tax status of distributions shortly after the close of each calendar year.

Qualified Business Income. For taxable years beginning after 2017 and before 2025, non-corporate taxpayers generally may deduct 20% of "qualified business income" derived either directly or through partnerships or S corporations. For this purpose, "qualified business income" generally includes dividends paid by a real estate investment trust ("REIT") and certain income from publicly traded partnerships. Regulations recently adopted by the United States Treasury allow non-corporate shareholders of a Fund to benefit from the 20% deduction with respect to net REIT dividends received by the Fund if the Fund meets certain reporting requirements, but do not permit any such deduction with respect to publicly traded partnerships.

Investment in Complex Securities. The Fund may invest in complex securities that could require it to adjust the amount, timing and/or tax character (ordinary or capital) of gains and losses it recognizes on these investments. This, in turn, could affect the amount, timing and/or tax character of income distributed to you by the Fund. For example, if the Fund is permitted to invest in options or futures contracts, it could be required to mark-to-market these contracts at its fiscal year end. Under these rules, gains or losses on these contracts would be treated as 60% long-term and 40% short-term capital gains or losses.

Capital loss carryforwards. As of October 31, 2023, the Fund had no capital loss carryforwards.

The forgoing discussion of U.S. federal income tax law relates solely to the application of the law to U.S. citizens or residents and U.S. domestic corporations, partnerships, estates the income of which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of its source, and trusts that (1) are subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and one or more Unites States persons have the authorization to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (2) have a valid election in effect under applicable United States Treasury regulations to be treated as a United States person.

DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Fund will receive income in the form of dividends and interest earned on its investments in securities. This income, less the expenses incurred in its operations, is the Fund's net investment income, substantially all of which will be declared as dividends to the Fund's shareholders.

The amount of income dividend payments by the Fund is dependent upon the amount of net investment income received by the Fund from its portfolio holdings, is not guaranteed and is subject to the discretion of the Board. The Fund does not pay "interest" or guarantee any fixed rate of return on an investment in its shares.

The Fund also may derive capital gains or losses in connection with sales or other dispositions of its portfolio securities. Any net gain the Fund may realize from transactions involving investments held less than the period required for long-term capital gain or loss recognition or otherwise producing short-term capital gains and losses is taxed as ordinary income. If during any year the Fund realizes a net gain on transactions involving investments held more than the period required for long-term capital gain or loss recognition or otherwise producing long-term capital gains and losses, the Fund will have a net long-term capital gain. After deduction of the amount of any capital loss, the balance will be distributed and treated as long-term capital gains in the hands of the shareholders regardless of the length of time the Fund's

shares may have been held by the shareholders. For more information concerning applicable capital gains tax rates, see your tax advisor.

Any dividend or distribution paid by the Fund reduces the Fund's NAV per share on the date paid by the amount of the dividend or distribution per share. Accordingly, a dividend or distribution paid shortly after a purchase of shares by a shareholder would represent, in substance, a partial return of capital (to the extent it is paid on the shares so purchased), even though it would be subject to income taxes.

Dividends and other distributions will be made in the form of additional shares of the Fund unless the shareholder has otherwise indicated. If you wish to change your distribution option, notify the Transfer Agent in writing or by telephone at least five days in advance of the payment date for the distribution.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING PROGRAM

The Trust has established an Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Program (the "Program") as required by the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (the "USA PATRIOT Act"). In order to ensure compliance with this law, the Trust's Program provides for the development of internal practices, procedures and controls, designation of anti-money laundering compliance officers, an ongoing training program and an independent audit function to determine the effectiveness of the Program.

Procedures to implement the Program include, but are not limited to, determining that the Fund's Distributor and Transfer Agent have established proper anti-money laundering procedures, reporting suspicious and/or fraudulent activity, checking shareholder names against designated government lists, including Office of Foreign Asset Control ("OFAC"), and a complete and thorough review of all new opening account applications. The Trust will not transact business with any person or legal entity whose identity and beneficial owners, if applicable, cannot be adequately verified under the provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Investors in the Fund will be informed of the Fund's progress through periodic reports. Financial statements certified by the independent registered public accounting firm will be submitted to shareholders annually.

The Trust's Declaration of Trust permits the Trustees to issue an unlimited number of full and fractional shares of beneficial interest and to divide or combine the shares into a greater or lesser number of shares without thereby changing the proportionate beneficial interest in the Fund. Each share represents an interest in the Fund proportionately equal to the interest of each other share. Upon the Fund's liquidation, all shareholders would share pro rata in the net assets of the Fund available for distribution to shareholders.

The Declaration of Trust does not require the issuance of stock certificates and no stock certificates have been issued for the Fund.

The Board has created numerous series of shares, and may create additional series in the future, each of which has separate assets and liabilities. Income and operating expenses not specifically attributable to a particular Fund are allocated fairly among the Funds by the Trustees, generally on the basis of the relative net assets of each Fund.

Rule 18f-2 under the 1940 Act provides that as to any investment company which has two or more series outstanding and as to any matter required to be submitted to shareholder vote, such matter is not deemed to have been effectively acted upon unless approved by the holders of a "majority" (as defined in the Rule) of the voting securities of each series affected by the matter. Such separate voting requirements do not apply to the election of Trustees or the ratification of the selection of accountants. The Rule contains special provisions for cases in which an advisory contract is approved by one or more, but not all, series. A change in investment policy may go into effect as to one or more series whose holders so approve the change even though the required vote is not obtained as to the holders of other affected series.

With respect to the Fund, the Trust may offer more than one class of shares. The Trust has reserved the right to create and issue additional series or classes. Each share of a series or class represents an equal proportionate interest in that series or class with each other share of that series or class. Currently, the Fund has only one class of shares.

The shares of each series or class participate equally in the earnings, dividends and assets of the particular series or class. Expenses of the Trust which are not attributable to a specific series or class are allocated among all the series in a manner believed by management of the Trust to be fair and equitable. Fund shares have no pre-emptive or conversion rights. Shares, when issued, are fully paid and non-assessable, except as set forth below. Shareholders are entitled to one vote for each share held. Shares of each series or class generally vote together, except when required under federal securities laws to vote separately on matters that only affect a particular class, such as the approval of distribution plans for a particular class.

The Trust is not required to hold annual meetings of shareholders but will hold special meetings of shareholders of a series or class when, in the judgment of the Trustees, it is necessary or desirable to submit matters for a shareholder vote. Shareholders have, under certain circumstances, the right to communicate with other shareholders in connection with requesting a meeting of shareholders for the purpose of removing one or more Trustees. Shareholders also have, in certain circumstances, the right to remove one or more Trustees without a meeting. No material amendment may be made to the Declaration of Trust without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of each portfolio affected by the amendment. The Declaration of Trust provides that, at any meeting of shareholders of the Trust or of any series or class, a Shareholder Servicing Agent may vote any shares as to which such Shareholder Servicing Agent is the agent of record and which are not represented in person or by proxy at the meeting, proportionately in accordance with the votes cast by holders of all shares of that portfolio otherwise represented at the meeting in person or by proxy as to which such Shareholder Servicing Agent is the agent of record. Any shares so voted by a Shareholder Servicing Agent will be deemed represented at the meeting for purposes of quorum requirements. Any series or class may be terminated at any time by vote of a majority of the shares of that series or by the Trustees by written notice to the shareholders of that series. Unless each series and class is so terminated, the Trust will continue indefinitely.

The Declaration of Trust also provides that the Trust shall maintain appropriate insurance (for example, fidelity bonding and errors and omissions insurance) for the protection of the Trust, its shareholders, Trustees, officers, employees and agents covering possible tort and other liabilities.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The <u>annual report</u> for the Fund for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2023, is a separate document supplied upon request and the financial statements, accompanying notes and reports of the independent registered public accounting firm appearing therein are incorporated by reference in this SAI.

APPENDIX

S&P Global Ratings ("S&P") Corporate Bond Rating Definitions

AAA-Debt rated "AAA" has the highest rating assigned by S&P. Capacity to pay interest and repay principal is extremely strong.

AA-Debt rated "AA" has a very strong capacity to pay interest and repay principal and differs from the higher-rated issues only in small degree.

A-Debt rated "A" has a strong capacity to pay interest and repay principal, although it is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than debt in higher-rated categories.

BBB-Debt rated "BBB" is regarded as having an adequate capacity to pay interest and repay principal. Whereas it normally exhibits adequate protection parameters, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity to pay interest and repay principal for debt in this category than in higher-rated categories.

BB, B, CCC, CC-Debt rated "BB", "B", "CCC", and "CC" is regarded, on balance, as predominantly speculative with respect to capacity to pay interest and repay principal in accordance with the terms of the obligation. "BB" indicates the lowest degree of speculation and "CC" the highest degree of speculation. While such debt will likely have some quality and protective characteristics, these are outweighed by large uncertainties of major risk exposures to adverse conditions.

CI-The rating "CI" is reversed for income bonds on which no interest is being paid.

D-Debt rated "D" is in default, and payment of interest and/or repayment of principal is in arrears.

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Corporate Bond Rating Definitions

Aaa-Bonds which are rated "Aaa" are judged to be of the best quality. They carry the smallest degree of investment risk and are generally referred to as "gilt edged." Interest payments are protected by a large or an exceptionally stable margin and principal is secure. While the various protective elements are likely to change, such changes as can be visualized are most unlikely to impair the fundamentally strong position of such issues

Aa-Bonds which are rated "Aa" are judged to be of high quality by all standards. Together with the Aaa group, they comprise what are generally known as high-grade bonds. They are rated lower than the best bonds because margins of protection may not be as large as in Aaa securities or fluctuation of protective elements may be of greater amplitude or there may be other elements present that make the long-term risks appear somewhat larger than in Aaa securities.

A-Bonds which are rated "A" possess many favorable investment attributes and are to be considered as upper medium-grade obligations. Factors giving security to principal and interest are considered adequate but elements may be present which suggest a susceptibility to impairment sometime in the near future.

Baa-Bonds which are rated "Baa" are considered as medium-grade obligations (*i.e.*, they are neither highly protected nor poorly secured). Interest payments and principal security appear adequate for the present but certain protective elements may be lacking or may be characteristically unreliable over any

great length of time. Such bonds lack outstanding investment characteristics and, in fact, have speculative characteristics as well.

Ba-Bonds which are "Ba" are judged to have speculative elements; their future cannot be considered well assured. Often the protection of interest and principal payments may be very moderate and thereby not well safeguarded during both good and bad times over the future. Uncertainty of position characterizes bonds in this class.

B-Bonds which are rated "B" generally lack characteristics of a desirable investment. Assurance of interest and principal payments or of maintenance of other terms of the contract over any long period of time may be small.

Caa-Bonds which are rated "Caa" are of poor standing. Such issues may be in default or there may be present elements of danger with respect to principal or interest.

Ca-Bonds which are "Ca" represent obligations which are speculative in a high degree. Such issues are often in default or have other marked shortcomings.

C-Bonds which are rated "C" are the lowest rated class of bonds, and issues so rated can be regarded as having extremely poor prospects of ever attaining any real investment standing.

Fitch Ratings, Inc. Bond Rating Definitions

AAA-Bonds considered to be investment grade and of the highest credit quality. The obligor has an exceptionally strong ability to pay interest and repay principal, which is unlikely to be affected by reasonably foreseeable events.

AA-Bonds considered to be investment grade and of very high credit quality. The obligor's ability to pay interest and repay principal is very strong, although not quite as strong as bonds rated "AAA." Because bonds rated in the "AAA" and "AA" categories are not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable future developments, short-term debt of these issuers is generally rated "F-1+."

A-Bonds considered to be investment grade and of high credit quality. The obligor's ability to pay interest and repay principal is considered strong, but may be more vulnerable to adverse changes in economic conditions and circumstances than bonds with higher ratings.

BBB-Bonds considered to be investment grade and of satisfactory credit quality. The obligor's ability to pay interest and repay principal is considered to be adequate. Adverse changes in economic conditions and circumstances, however, are more likely to have adverse impact on these bonds, and therefore impair timely payment. The likelihood that the ratings of these bonds will fall below investment grade is higher than for bonds with higher ratings.

BB-Bonds are considered speculative. The obligor's ability to pay interest and repay principal may be affected over time by adverse economic changes. However, business and financial alternatives can be identified which could assist the obligor in satisfying its debt service requirements.

B-Bonds are considered highly speculative. While bonds in this class are currently meeting debt service requirements, the probability of continued timely payment of principal and interest reflects the obligor's limited margin of safety and the need for reasonable business and economic activity throughout the life of the issue.

CCC-Bonds have certain identifiable characteristics which, if not remedied, may lead to default. The ability to meet obligations requires an advantageous business and economic environment.

CC-Bonds are minimally protected. Default in payment of interest and/or principal seems probable over time.

C-Bonds are in imminent default in payment of interest or principal.

DDD, DD, and D-Bonds are in default on interest and/or principal payments. Such bonds are extremely speculative and should be valued on the basis of their ultimate recovery value in liquidation or reorganization of the obligor. "DDD" represents the highest potential for recovery on these bonds, and "D" represents the lowest potential for recovery.